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1.

PART I- BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

BUSINESS

The Company

Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. (“Parent Company” or “KPPI”), is a stock corporation organized
under the laws of the Philippines. The Parent Company was first incorporated on 7 February 1918
under the name Hoa Hin Co., Ine. It was renamed to Cebu Shipyard and Engineering Works, Inc. in
1957 and then renamed to Keppel Philippines Properties Inc. in 1998.

KPPI was registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on 7 February
[918. Its corporate life was extended for another fifty (50) years starting 7 February 1968. On 5
May 2017, the Philippine SEC approved the Parent Company’s Articles of Incorporation to further
extend its corporate life for another 50 years starting 6 February 2018.

KPPT is listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). Its immediate parent company is Keppel
Land Limited (KLL) and the ultimate parent company is Keppel Corporation Limited (KCL), both
incorporated in Singapore. KCL is listed in the Singapore Exchange.

Subsidiaries

CSRI Investment Corporation (“CSRI”) was incorporated in the Philippines on 25 October 1990.
CSRI, a wholly owned subsidiary of KPPI, is a holding company with investments in marketable
equity securities and other investments. CSRI’s source of income is solely from investment in
securities.

Buena Homes, Inc. (“BHI”) was incorporated in the Philippines on 25 May 2000. BHI, a wholly
owned subsidiary of KPPI, is engaged in property holding and development.

Associates

Opon Realty and Development Corporation (“ORDC”), which is 40% owned by KPPI, was
incorporated in the Philippines on 31 March 1989 primarily to acquire by purchase, lease, donation
or otherwise, and to own, use, improve, develop, subdivide, sell, mortgage, exchange, lease, develop
and hold for investment or other otherwise, real estate of all kinds.

Opon Ventures, Inc., which is 40% owned by KPPl, was incorporated in the Philippines on
14 September 1993 with the same objectives as ORDC.

Opon-KE Properties, Inc., which is 40% owned by KPPI, was incorporated in the Philippines on
19 January 1994 primarily to hold investments in associates.

Buena Homes (Sandoval), Inc. (“BHSF?), which is 40% owned by BHI, was incorporated in the
Philippines on 24 May 2000. BHSI was involved in the development of a residential project known
as “Patmdale Heights” which was completed in 2003.

Joint Venture

SM Keppel Land, Inc. (“SMKL”), which is 40% owned by KPPL, was incorporated in the
Philippines on 11 January 1994 to operate and maintain office and shopping center spaces for rent,
carpark and cinema. KPPI entered into a joint venture agreement with Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc.
(“BDO”) for the development of “The Podium Complex™, a mixed-use development comprising of
retail and office, in Ortigas.
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The Parent Company, together with its subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture, are collectively
referred to as the “Group™.

Business

KPPI through its subsidiary, BHI, hold investment in an associate involved in property holding and
development of residential properties.

At the same time, KPPI, through its associated companies, is engaged in real estate development of
office and commercial buildings, and renders property management consultancy services to these

associates.

i)

Residential

Palmdale Heights

The project is a suburban middie-income residential development located on a 23,924
square meters (“sqm™) site in Sandoval Avenue, Brgy. Pinagbuhatan, Pasig City, Metro
Manila. The project comprises six residential blocks (with a total of 828 units at 138
units per block), two-storey clubhouse, swimming pools, parks, playgrounds and parking
areas for sale with a total of 232 parking slots. Each residential unit has a floor area of
approximately 40 to 50 sqm.

As at 31 December 2018, 99% (824 units) of the 828 launched units and 69% (160 units)
of the 232 parking lots have been sold.

Retail/Office

The Podium Mail

The Podium is the retail component in the mixed-use development. It is focated in the
central business district of Ortigas, Mandaluyong City, Manila. The Podium offers a
first-class shopping experience with a mix of specialty stores featuring well known
international and local labels. It also has a wide selection of gourmet dining, branded
fashion, prestige wellness, services outlets and cinemas.

The Podium West Tower

The Podium West Tower is the office component in the mixed-use development. Itis a
42-storey Grade A office tower. Its construction is expected to be completed by the 2nd
quarter of 2019,

The office tower and retail mall have been pre-certified Green Mark Gold by the Building
and Construction Authority of Singapore and have also obtained pre-certification (Gold)
by the United States Green Building Council’s Leadership in Energy and Environmental
Design (LEED) for its green and energy-efficient features.



Competition

As a property developer through its associated companies, KPP1 considers the following property
developers as the industry’s key players in terms of end products:

Comprehensive Income
YTD 3Q20138
In Php Billions
Ayala Land Ine. 24.0
SM Prime Holdings, Inc. 24.0
Robinson’s Land Corporation 6.6

Source: Published corporate disclosures.

Competitive pressures are expected to remain as new players have embarked on aggressive
developments.

In the residential sector, BHSI faces stiff competition from other developers who have set their
targets on the middle class income, a market segment that has also been the focus of BHSL With
its track record as a developer of quality housing projects, BHSI will remain competitive in this
sector.

In the retail sector, the market is expected to be resilient with continued consumer spending.
Retail developers continue to expand their retail portfolios to meet the growing consumer
demand. The Podium Mall has strengthened its presence in the market since its expansion in
2017 and renovation of its old wing in 2018. Featuring an intricate architectural design and
spacious ambiance, The Podium has remained to be the preferred meeting place for professionals.

Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business, significant transactions with related parties and associated
companies consist of the following:

a. KPPI has a Consultancy Services Agreement with Straits Mansfield Property Marketing Pte.,
Ltd. based on agreed rates.

b. KPPI provides management advisory and consultancy services to SMKL. Management
consultancy fees are computed based on agreed rates.

¢. KPPI grants operating advances to certain associated companies.

Government Approvals/Regulations

The Philippine real estate industry is regulated by numerous Government policies and
guidelines, commencing from land acquisition and title issuance, development planning, design
and construction up to mortgage financing/refinancing to pre-selling.

The Parent Company, through is associated companies, has complied with the application and
approval process required by the Government, which are described below:

Once the developer has identified and finalized the project development plan, an application is
made for a development permit. The developer is required to submit as part of each application
for a development permit an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) prepared by a qualified
environmental consultant. Where a project or property is classified as “environmentally critical”
the developer is required to obtain an Environmental Compliance Certificate {ECC) issued by
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the Department of Environment and Natural Resources (DENR). As a requirement for the
issuance of ECC, an Environmental Geological and Geo Hazard Assessment Report (EGGAR)
should be submitted.

After a development permit is obtained, an application is made for a license to sell the individual
subdivision units from Housing and Land Use Regulatory Board. Approval may also be required

from the Land Management Bureau (for industrial use land) or the Land Registration Authority
(for residential use land) for the relevant subdivision plan.

Employees

KPPI has a total of 16 employees as at December 31, 2018 with breakdown as follows:

No. of Employees
Senior Management 3
Human Resources 2
Finance and Accounting 5
Administration 3
Sales and Marketing 1
Legal and Compliance |
Information Technology ]
Total 6

No significant hiring or recruitment is expected for 2019.
Risks

KPPI’s business activities are conducted in the Philippines and its revenues and operating profits
are derived from its investments and the activities of its associates, SMKL and BHS), which
exposes KPPI to changes in the Philippine economy.

The Group is also exposed to financial, operating and administrative risks which are normal in
the course of business.

To manage these risks, Management is highly committed to ensuring that the Group’s business
processes are clearly defined, in compliance with the KPPI’s policies and procedures, and
performed effectively and efficiently in satisfying stakeholders’ needs.

Moreover, SMKL and BHSI obtains updates on markets/prices and current economic and
political developments. Assessments are then made of the financial viability of the proposed
projects in the light of current economic, political and industry indicators.




2. PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2018, the associated companies’ investments in real estate properties are as

follows:
Type Of Property Location Description Remarks
a, Land & Buaildings ADB Avenug, 20,000 sq. m site on which ~ 40% owned by KPPI through its
Ortigas Center, stands SMKI, mixed-use associate, SMKL. SMKL Phase 2
Mandaluyong City development land area of 12,932 sq. m is
mortgaged to BDO Unibank, Inc.
b. Land Sandoval Avenue, Land consisting of five (5} 40% owned by KPPI through its
Pasig City. contiguous lots containing associate, BHSE Not morigaged.
an aggregate of 17,830 sq.
m, the undeveloped site of
Palmdale Heights

3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As at 31 December 2018, the Parent Company, its subsidiaries, and associated companies are not

involved in any litigation.

4, SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Except for the matters taken up during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting, there were no other matters
submitted to a vote of security holders during the period covered by this report,




PART II - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDERS’
MATTERS

The common equity of KPPI is traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange. There is no restriction for
any cash dividends declaration, However, no cash dividends were declared from 2003 to 2018.

STOCK PRICES 2019 2018 2017

High Low High Low High Low
First Quarter P4 83 B4.82 B4.30 P4.28 P4.21 £4.02
Second Quarter - - 4.17 4.11 4.20 4.14
Third Quarter - - 417 4.11 4.50 4,12
Fourth Quarter - - 3.86 3.81 4.16 4.15

KPPI has no acquisition, business combination, or other reorganization planned in the near future
which involves issuance of securities.

There were no recent sales of unregistered or exempt securities.
Its common shares were last traded on 26 December 2018 at £3.81 per share.
As at 31 December 2018, there were 1,242 shareholders on record and there were 293,828,900

common shares outstanding. Following is the table of KPPI's top 20 stockholders as at 31 December
2018:

No. of Shares % to Total
Name Held
1. | Keppel Land, Limited 148,365,050 50.49
2. | Kepwealth, Inc. 51,033,178 17.37
3. | Keppel Corporation, Limited 35,783,742 12,18
4. | Moiten Pte Ltd. 19,951,723 6.79
5. | PCD Nominee Corporation - Filipino 12,539,898 4.27
6. | PCD Nominee Corporation - Foreign 4,460,347 1.52
7. | International Container Terminal Services Inc. 4.265,171 1.45
8. | George S. Dee, Jr. 3,442,891 1.17
9. | PNOC Shipping and Transport Corporation 2,227,511 0.76
10. | Visayan Surety & Insurance Corporation 1,671,664 0.57
11. | Sulpicio Lines, Inc. 694,719 0.24
12. | Augusto Go 410,423 0.14
13. | Negros Navigation Company, Inc. 357,771 0.12
14. | Eduardo Go Hayco 269,277 0.09
15. | Ho Tong Hardware, Inc. 248,018 0.08
16. | Adrienne Gotian Chu 236,795 0.08
17. | Mary Margaret G. Dee 236,788 0.08
18. | Tessa L. Navera 225,005 0.08
19. | Janette Nellie Go Chiu 200,055 0.07
20. | Rafanan/Antonio Diosdado 181,453 0.06
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6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATIONS

A. Results of Operations

The Group holds investments in associates involved in property holding and development. It derives
its revenue from rendering management consultancy services to associates.

Year Ended 31 December 2018 Compared To 2017

TOTAL REVENUE AND INCOME (1L.OSS) registered a 265.6 million reversal from an income of
P22 4 million in 2017 to a loss of £43.2 million in 2018. The net decrease is mainly attributable to
the following:

o Changes in SHARE IN RESULTS OF ASSOCIATED COMPANIES from period to period are
dependent upon the results of the operations of the associated companies. 2018 showed a share
in net loss of B57.1 million as compared to  share in net income of 13.7 million in 2017. The
said share in loss relates mainly to the net loss reported by SMKL in 2018, and which net loss
resulted mainly from significant depreciation charge and interest expense incurred by the said
associated company during the year. The closure of The Podium old wing in October 2017 for
renovation, which was completed in December 2018, also contributed to the loss for the year.

o Increase in MANAGEMENT CONSULTANCY AND FRANCHISE FEES by P4.3 million or 80%
from BS5.4 million in 2017 to 9.7 million in 2018 due to increase in The Podium’s rental
income on which these fees from SMKL are based.

o Increase in INTEREST INCOME by 21.0 million or 31% from B3.2 million in 2017 to
P4.2 million in 2018 due to higher interest rates on deposit placements.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES increased by B1S5.4 million or 26% from
P58.8 million in 2017 to £74.2 million in 2018 mainly due to the timing of consultancy fee charges
related to the SMKL mixed-use development project.

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE), NET resulted to a 0.2 million income in 2018 in contrast to a
P1.9 million expense in 2017 due to a significant provision for doubtful account set up in 2017.

As a result, the Group’s operations posted a net loss for the year amounting to £118.2 million, an
increase of P80.4 million or 213% from the R37.8 million net loss in 2017.

Year Ended 31 December 2017 Compared To 2016

TOTAL REVENUE AND INCOME (LOSS) increased by £8.2 million or 58% from B14.2 million in
2016 to B22.4 million in 2017 due to higher share in results of associated companies and interest
income, offset by a slight decrease in management consultancy and franchise fees.

o SHAREIN RESULTS OF ASSOCIATED COMPANIES increased by 6.9 million or 101% from
P6.8 million in 2016 to 213.7 million in 2017. This account represents the Group’s share in the
net income/loss of its associated companies. Changes in share of results from period to period
are dependent upon the results of the operations of the associated companies. The increase was
mainly attributed to SMKL operations due to the reversal of a provision no longer required,
deferred income from straight-lining of rental revenue and deferred income tax benefit from
net operating loss carryover, offset by the significant depreciation charge, interest expense,
repairs and maintenance and advertising and promotions incurred related to the commencement
of the operations of the expansion of The Podium Mall in October 2017.



o INTEREST INCOME increased by B1.3 million or 68% from B1.9 million in 2016 to
B3.2 miilion in 2017 due to higher interest rates on deposit placements,

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES increased by B13.8 million or 31% from
PR45.0 million in 2016 to 258.8 million in 2017 mainly due to the increase in supervision and oversight
costs relating to the ongoing construction of SMIKL mixed-use development, that are deemed
non-capitalizable by the Parent Company.

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE), NET resulted to a #1.9 million expense in 2017 in contrast with a
B1.3 million income in 2016 due to a significant provision for doubtful aceount set up in 2017.

As a result, the Group’s operations posted a net loss for the year amounting to B37.8 million, an
increase of B7.6 million or 25% from the 230.2 million net loss in 2016.

Year Ended 31 December 2016 Compared To 2015

TOTAL REVENUE AND INCOME (LOSS) decreased by 4.4 million or 24% from 218.6 million in
2015 to £14.2 million in 2016 due to lower share in results of associated companies, partially offset
by a skight increase in management consultancy and franchise fees and interest income.

o SHARE IN RESULTS OF ASSOCIATED COMPANIES decreased by 5.8 million or 46% from
£12.6 million in 2015 to 6.8 million in 2016. This account represents Group’s share in the net
income/loss of its associated companies. Changes in share in net earnings from period to period
are dependent upon the results of the operations of the associated companies. The decrease is
due to net loss incurred by BHSI in 2016 as compared to net income earned in 2015. This was
brought about by lower sales resulting in overheads exceeding gross profit. On the other hand,
SMKL showed a gradual increase in net income resulting from higher occupancy rate in 2016
as compared to 2015,

o MANAGEMENT CONSULTANCY AND FRANCHISE FEES increased by 20.4 million or 8%
from £5.1 million in 20135 to B5.5 million in 2016 due to the higher revenue of SMKL in 2016,
on which these fees are based.

o INTEREST INCOME increased by £0.9 million or 90% from BL.0 million in 2015 to
B! .9 million in 2016 due to higher interest rates on deposit placements.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES increased by B8.7 million or 24% from
P36.3 million in 2015 to £45.0 million in 2016 mainly due to the increase in supervision and oversight
costs relating to the ongoing construction of SMKL mixed-use development, that are deemed
non-capitalizable by the Parent Company.

As a result, the Group’s operations posted a net loss for the year amounting to £30.2 million, an
increase of £16.1 million or 114% from the £14.1 million net loss in 2015.



KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

a.

For The Years Ended December 2018 | December 2017 | % Change
Return On Assets (7.26%) (2.18%) 233%
Loss Per Share £0.40 £0.13 208%
Net Tangible Asset Value Per Share B2.91 2331 -12%
Working Capital Ratio 3.2:1 5.1:1 -37%

Return On Assets — It indicates how effectively the assets of the Group are utilized in
generating profit. Net loss after tax amounted to £118.2 million in 2018 which increased by
B80.4 million from 237.8 million in 2017. The higher net loss is due to a significant decrease in
share in results of associated companies and increase in general and administrative expenses.

Fa)

2018 017

118,196,865 R37,348,940

Net Loss After Tax (a)

1,627,357,7187 1,737,255,335

Total Assets At Beginning (b)

(7.26%) (2.18%)

Return On Assets (a/b)

Loss Per Share — It represents the equivalent apportionment of net loss to each share of
common stock outstanding. This unfavorable performance is due to higher net loss incurred in
2018 as compared to 2017.

2018 2017
Net Loss After Tax (a) £118,196,865 237,848,940
Number of Common Stock (b) 293,828,900 293,828,900
Loss Per Share (a/b) £0.40 R0.13




d. Net Tangible Asset Value Per Share — If measures the equivalent entitlement of each share of
comimon stock cutstanding in the tangible assets. The tangible value per share decreased by
12% compared to 2017 due to the decrease in retained earnings resulting from the significant

loss incurred during the year.,

Note: Net Tangible Assets include 8594.7 million subscription proceeds for Preferred Stock.
As these Preferred Stocks are redeemable, the subscription proceeds have been excluded from
Net Tangible Assets in the computation of Net Tangible Asset Per Share.

2018 2017
Net Tangible Assets B1,450,530,264  B£1,568,072,215
Less : Preferred Stock 594,741,000 594,741,000
Net Tangible Assets Attributable To
Common Stock 855,789,264 973,331,215
Number of Common Stock 293,828,900 293,828,900
Net Tangible Asset Value Per Share £2.91 2331

¢.  Working Capital Ratio — The Group’s ability to meet current obligations is measured by
determining current assets over currenf obligations. The Working Capital ratio decreased by

37% as compared to 2017.

2018 2017

Current Assets (a) £263,249,770 £302,391,530

Current Liabilities (b) 81,106,708 59,285,572
Working Capital Ratio (a/b) 3.2:1 5.0




B. Financial Condition

Year Ended 3| December 2018 Compared To 2017

TOTAL ASSETS declined by £95.8 million from B1,627.4 million in 2017 to B1,531.6 million in
2018. The significant change in account balances from period to period are as follows:

o (CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS decreased by B40.6 million due to the net cash used for
operating activities, mainly from general and administrative expenses, offset by interest
income received and collections from intercompany receivables and return of investments
from an associate.

¢ PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS increased by 1.6 due to the renewal of
leases in 2018 that required prepayments and advance rentals.

¢ INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE decreased by £56.8 million due the
negative share in results of associated companies for the year then ended.

Year Ended 3t December 2017 Compared To 2016

TOTAL ASSETS declined by £109.9 million from £1,737.3 million in 2016 to 21,627.4 million in
2017. The significant change in account balances from period to period are as follows:

¢+ CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS decreased by £25.2 million due to the net cash used for
operating activities, mainly from general and administrative expenses, offset by interest
income received and coliections from intercompany receivables and return of investments
from an associate.

+ RECEIVABLES decreased by £3.1 million due to the provision for doubtful accounts set up
in 2017 and realization of accrued revenue from prior year,

¢+ DUEFROM RELATED PARTIES increased by £26.7 million related to the outstanding
balance from the return of investments from an associate resulting from the approved
reduction of share capital of an associate.

o TINVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE decreased by 2109.5 million
refated to the approved reduction of share capital of an associate, partially offset by the
increase in share of results of associated companies.

¢ DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS, NET increased by £1.5 million related to the increase in
tax base on accruals in 2017,




7. TRENDS, EVENTS OR UNCERTAINTIES THAT HAVE AFFECTED OR THAT ARE
REASONABLY EXPECTED TO AFFECT REVENUES OR INCOME

a) Asat December 31, 2018:

o There are no known material commitments for capital expenditures.

o There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net revenues or income from
coniinuing operations.

o  There are no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Group’s
continuing operations.

o  There are no seasonal aspects that had a material impact on the results of operations of Group.

b) There are no events nor any default or acceleration of an obligation that will trigger direct or
contingent financial obligation that is material to Group.

¢) There are no off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations), and other relationships of Group with unconsolidated entries or other persons created
during the reporting period.

dy The Group is not a party to any lawsuit or claim arising from the ordinary course of business.

e) The Philippine real estate industry is cyclical and is sensitive to changes in general economic
conditions, Property values in the Philippines are affected by the general supply and demand of
real estate in the country.

8. INFORMATION ON EXTERNAL AUDITORS

Audit fees paid by the Group to the External Auditors amounted to £400,000 in 2018 and 2017.
There were no other fees paid.

The Audit Commitiee’s approval policies and procedures included assessing the proposed scope of
audit work to be conducted by the independent auditor, evaluating if there are material audit issues
to be resolved, and then determining whether the fee charged is commensurate with the work carried
out.

9. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements and schedules listed in the accompanying Index to Financial
Statements and Supplementary Schedules (page24) are filed as part of this Form 17-A (pages 26 to
8s).

10. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH EXTERNAL AUDITORS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There were no changes in and/or disagreements with Group’s external auditors on accounting and
financial disclosures.



PART 111- CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

1i. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
Board of Directors
(1) Sam Moon Thong, 53

Mr. Sam Moon Thong, 53, Singaporean, was elected Director and Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. on 27 April 2017. Mr. Sam joined the Keppel Land
Group in 2003 and is currently President, Regional Investments, overseeing the Group’s business
in India, Thailand, Myanmar, Malaysia, Philippines, Sri Lanka and Middle East. His previous
appointments include President, Indonesia, overseeing the Group development and investments in
Indonesia as well as General Manager, Investment, overseeing business development and asset
management activities outside China and Singapore. Mr. Sam has over 20 years of experience in
investing and managing real estate projects in the Asia Pacific region.

Prior to joining Keppel Land Group, Mr, Sam was Vice-President, Real Estate Development and
Investment at Ascendas Pte. Ltd and Business Development Manager at Fraser Centrepoint Limited,
overseeing business development and investment in South-East Asia, South Asia and China. He
started his career with the Urban Redevelopment Authority where he held responsibilities in the
Land Management and Sale of Sites Departments,

Mr, Sam is a Director of a number of subsidiaries and associates in the Keppel Land Group.

He holds a Bachelor of Science (Estate Management)} (Honours) Degree from National University
of Singapore, and a Master of Business Administration Degree from the University of Dubuque,
lowa, USA.

(2) Ramon J. Abejuela, 69

Mr. Ramon J. Abejuela, 69, Filipino, was elected as an Independent Director of Keppel Philippines,
Inc. from November 1999 to June 2008, He was re-elected in June 2009 and is currently the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of KPPI. He is also an Independent Director of Keppel Phiiippines
Holdings, Inc. since September 2017, He also serves as Director and Vice Chairman of the Board of
Philippine Nutri-Foods Corporation and NCP Publishing Inc. since 2004,

Mr. Abejucla holds a Bachelor of Science in Chemical Engineering (Cum Laude) Degree from
De La Salle University and a Master’s Degree in Business Management - General Management
Curriculum from the Asian Institute of Management.

Mr. Abejuela has over 40 years of experience in the field of financial planning, control and
consultancy.

(3) Celso P. Vivas, 72

Mr. Celso P. Vivas, 72, Filipino, was elected as an Independent Director of Keppel Philippines
Properties, Inc. since November 2004 and is a member of KPPI's Audit Committee. He is also an
Independent Director since June 2005 and is currently the Lead Independent Director and Chairman
of the Audit and Risk Management Committee of KKeppel Holdings, Inc., as well as an Independent
Director and Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee of Keppel Philippines
Marine, Inc. Mr. Vivas is also an Independent Director of Megawide Construction Corporation,
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Chairman of its Audit and Compliance Committee, and Member of both the Board Risk Oversight
and Governance, Nomination and Remuneration Committee. He also serves as an Independent
Director of Republic Glass Holdings Corporation, Chairman of its Governance, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, and Member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee. He is a
member of Marubeni Foundation’s Board of Trustees.

Mr. Vivas was a Risk Consulting Partner and Assurance Business Advisory Partner of SGV &
Company until his retirement in 2001,

Mr. Vivas holds a Bachelor of Business Administration (Cum Laude) Degree from the University
of the East. He also obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Management from the Asian Insfitute
of Management (SGV & Co. Scholar). He is also a graduate of Company Directors” Course from
Australian Institute of Company Directors (1CD Scholar).

Mr. Vivas is a Certified Public Accountant and has over 50 years of experience in audit, finance,
enterprise risk management and corporate governance.

(4) Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco, 67

Mr. Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco, 67, Filipino, was elected as an Independent Director of Keppel
Philippines Properties, Inc. in May 2018. He is also an Independent Director of I(eppel Philippines
Holdings Inc., Keppel Philippines Marine Inc. and Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc. since 2018. He is
also an Adviser to the Board of Directors of First Metro Investment Corp. since 2015, Non-executive
Director of First Metro Asset Management Inc. since 2017, Vice Chairman of First Metro Securities
Brokerage Corp. since 2018 and Independent Director of Mapfre Insular Insurance Corp. and
Omnipay, Inc. since 2016 and 2017, respectively, He is also a Non-executive Director of Rafael-
Alunan Agro Development Inc. since 2006. He is also a Trustee of Foundation for Carmelite
Scholastics and De La Salle College of St. Benilde since 2012 and 2013, respectively. He served
as President of The Insular Life Assurance Co, Ltd. during 2004 to 2015 and was concurrent Vice-
Chairman and/or Director of various Insular Life subsidiaries and affiliates such as Pilipinas Shell
Petreleum Corp. Mapfre Insular Insurance Corp., Insular Savings Bank, Insular Healthcare Inc.,
Insular Investment Corp., Asian Hospital Inc. and Union Bank of the Philippines.

Mr. Ongsingco graduated from the De La Salle University with Bachelor’s Degrees (Magna Cum
Laude) in Economics and Accounting. He also obtained a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from the University of the Philippines and in National Security Administration from
the National Defense College of the Philippines (with Honors).

Mr, Ongsingco has over 40 years of experience in banking, finance, and insurance.

(5) Stefan Tong Wai Mun, 46

Mr. Stefan Tong Wai Mun, 46, Malaysian, was elected as a Director of Keppel Philippines
Properties, Inc. in June 2007. He is also the Executive Vice President and Director of Keppel
Philippines Marine, Inc., as well as a Director of Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc., and of various
Keppel companies in the Philippines. :

Mr, Tong holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree in Accounting and Finance (Honours) from
University of Western Australia. He is a Chartered Accountant and a member of the Institute of

Chartered Accountants in Australia,

Mr. Tong has over 20 years of experience in banking, finance and real estate,




(6) Oh Lock Soon, 60

Mr. Oh Lock Soon, 60, Singaporean, was elected as a Director and President of KPP on 31 March
2017. Prior to his election, Mr. Oh Lock Soon served as the President of Keppel Thai Properties
Public Company Limited from January 2012 until June 2016, He served as an Executive Director
at Keppel Thai Properties Public Company Limited from December 2011 until June 2016. Further,
under Keppel Land International Ltd, Mr. Oh served as President (Thailand) under the Regional
Investments Division.

Prior to joining Keppel Land International Ltd, Mr, Oh served as Director for Qingjian Realty, Pte.
Ltd. He also served as a General Manager for Acacio Concept Singapore, Pte. Ltd. in 2010. In 2009,
he sat as General Manager of Qingjian Precast Pte Ltd. Mr Oh was the Chief Operating Officer of
TCC Capital Land (Thailand) Limited, a joint venture between Capital Land (Singapore) Limited
and TCC Land (Thailand) Limited from November 2006 until December 2008,

Mr. Oh holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Civil Engineering, Honors from University of
Southampton and Master of Science Degree in Concrete Structure from the lmperial College of
Science, Technology and Medicine, University of London, U.K.

(7) Tan Siew Ngok, 62

Ms. Tan Siew Ngok, 62, Singaporean, was elected as a Director of KPPI in Matrch 2015, Ms. Tan
is the General Manager (Finance and Administration) of Keppel Land International (Management)
Pte., Ltd. Sheis also a Director of subsidiaries and associated companies of the Keppel Land Group.
Ms. Tan holds a Bachelor in Comimerce (Accountancy) Degree from Nanyang University,
Singapore. She is a Fellow of CPA, Australia and a Fellow of Institute of Singapore Chartered
Accountants.

(8) Lim Kei Hin, t (deceased)*

Mr. Lim Kei Hin, Singaporean, was elected a Director of KPPI in June 2011. Mr. Lim joined the
Keppel Land Group as Chief Financial Officer in July 2007,

Prior to joining the Keppel Land Group, he was with Singapore Airlines Limited and has more than
20 years of diverse experience having served in different financial and general management roles in
Singapore, the Philippines, Australia and the United States. His last appointment was Chief Financial
Officer of Singapore Airport Terminal Services Limited.

Mr. Lim is a Director of KKeppel REIT Management Limited and a number of subsidiaries and
associated companies of the Keppel Land Group.

M. Lim holds a Bachelor of Science (Economics) Degree in Accounting & Finance (Honours) from
London School of Economics & Political Science, UK.

Unfortunately, Mr. Lim passed on last 10 August 2018. The vacancy resulting from his demise will
be taken up by the Board in its next meeting.
*On 14 January 2019, Ms, Tan Boon Ping was elected as Director of KPPI as his replacement.



Key Officers
Oh Lock Soon, 60, Singaporean, (See foregoing director’s profile)

Pang Chan Fan, 37, Singaporean, was appointed Treasurer of Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. in
October 2017. Mr. Pang joined Keppel Land Group under Keppel Land Hospitality Management Pte.,
Ltd. and was assigned as the Financial Controller of Wiseland Investment {Myanmar), Ltd. in October
2015. Mr. Pang was then transferred to Keppel Land International Limited and was assigned as
Financial Controller of KPPI in April 2017. Prior to joining Keppel Land Group, Mr. Pang has held
positions as a Finance Manager and has started his professional career in audit firms in Singapore.
Mr. Pang is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Atty. Ma. Melva E. Valdez, 59, Filipino, has been the Corporate Secretary of Keppei Philippines
Properties, Inc. since 1999. Atty. Valdez also served as Director of KPPI from 24 June 2008 to 11
June 2009. She is a Senior Partner of the law firm Bello Valdez Caluya & Fernandez (JGLaw). Atty.
Valdez is also the Corporate Secretary of Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc., and Mabuhay Vinyl
Corporation (listed corporations), Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. (a public company). She is
likewise the Corporate Secretary of Asian Institute of Management, Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc.,
Keppel Batangas Shipyard, Inc. and various Keppel companies in the Philippines, EMS Components
Assembly Inc,, EMS Resources Technology Inc., EMS Land Services Inc., EMS Services Philippines,
Inc., EMS Services International Inc., Alliance Mansols Inc., Creotec Philippines Inc, and Wartsila
Philippines Inc. She is also a member of the Board of Directors of Leighton Contractors (Phils), Inc.,
Servier Philippines, Inc., Buena Homes (Sandoval), Inc., Cambe Dental inc., Suretrac Holdings Inc.,
and Asia Contractors Holdings, Inc. Atty. Valdez likewise holds directorship positions in the
following companies: Logwin Air + Ocean Philippines, Inc., KPSI Property, Inc., Opon Realty &
Development Corp., Opon-Ke Properties, Inc., Asia Control Systems Philippines, Yinda
Communications Philippines Inc., and Saint-Gobain Philippines Co. Ltd. Inc. Atty. Valdez graduated
from the University of the Philippines with a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Political Science and a
Bachelor’s Degree in Law. She has over 30 years of working expetience in her field of profession as
a lawyer.

Atty. Myla Gloria A, Amboy, 48, Filipino, was elected as Assistant Corporate Secretary of Keppel
Philippines Properties, Inc. in March 2007, She is a Senior Associate of the law firm Bello Valdez
Caluya & Fernandez (JGLaw). She is also the Assistant Corporate Secretary of SM Keppel Land,
Inc., Mabuhay Vinyl Corporation (listed corporation), MVC Properties Inc., CSRI invesimeni
Corporation, Buena Homes (Sandoval) Inc., and Opon Ventures Inc. and the Corporate Secretary of
Opon Realty Development Corporation, Buena Homes Inc., Opon-KE Properties, Inc., Suretrac
Holdings Inc., Cambe Dental Clinic Inc. and Servier International Philippines, Inc. She graduated
from San Sebastian College with a Bachelot’s Degree in Political Science {Cum Laude) and from San
Beda College of Law with a Bachelor’s Degree in Law.

The members of the Board of Directors of KPPI are elected at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting to
hold office until the next succeeding annual meeting and until their respective successors have been
elected and qualified.

The Officers are appointed annually by the Board of Directors at its first meeting following the Annual
Meeting of the Stockholders, each to hold office until the corresponding meeting of the Board of
Directors in the next year or until a successor shall have been appointed or shall have been qualified.

As stated in this report, the business experience of KPPUs directors and officers covers the past five
years.



Significant Employees

There are no other employees other than the officers mentioned herein as executive officers who are
expected to make a significant contribution to the business.

Directorships in Other Reporting Companies
The following are directorships held by the Directors in other reporting companies:
Ramon J. Abejuela
Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. ............ Independent Director
Celso P. Vivas
Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. ............ Independent Director and Chairman
and Lead Independent Director of the
Audit& Risk Management Committee

Keppet Philippines Marine, Inc................Independent Director and Chairman of
the Audit & Risk Management Commiitee

Stefan Tong Wai Mun
Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc.............. Director
Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc................ Director and Executive Vice President

Mavyo Jose B. Ongsingco

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc..............Independent Director
Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc................ Independent Director
Keppel Subic Shipyards Inc..........oooiii Independent Director

Family Relationship

There are no family relationships up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity
among directors, executive officers, persons nominated or chosen by KPPI to become directors or
executive officers, any security holder of certain record, beneficial owner or management.

Legal Proceedings

To the knowledge and/or information of KPPI, none of the directors and officers/nominees was
involved during the past five (5) years in any litigation nor any bankruptcy proceedings. Neither have
they been convicted by final judgment in any criminal proceeding, or been subject 1o any order,
judgment or decree of competent jurisdiction, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring,
suspending, or otherwise limiting their involvement in any type of business, securities, commodities
or banking activities, nor found in an action by any court or administrative bodies to have violated a
securities and commodities law.




12. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

KPP} has eight executive officers as at 31 December 2018:

Name Principal Position

Oh Lock Soon President

Pang Chan Fan Finance Controller

Tan Ye-Huang Investment Manager

Joseph Paul Pelaez Manager - Legal and Compliance

Michelle Curiano Manager - Human Resources

Faye Monique Valderrama Deputy Manager - Finance and Accounting
Sally Ann Vale Deputy Manager - Finance and Accounting
Jan Michael Velasco Assistant Manager - Controls and Assurance

a. The aggregate annual compensation (including salary and benefits) paid to the executive
officers is summarized in the table below:

Top four executive officers Salay | Bonus | Others | Total

as a group unnamed In & Millions

2019 (Estimate) 26.63 6.13 0.05 32.81
2018 18.79 5.57 0.03 24.39
2017 17.55 4.82 0.03 22.40
Other officers and directors Salary | Bonus | Others | Total

as a group unnamed In £ Miilions

2019 (Estimate) 3.45 0.11 0.08 3.64
2018 3.14 0.10 0.07 3.31
2017 2.87 0.10 0.06 3.03

Executive Officers do not receive any other form of remuneration aside from the above
compensation. There are no arrangements and/or employment contracts between KPPl and
executive officers providing for any compensatory plan or arrangement for payment upon
resignation, retirement, termination or cessation of employment.

b. KPPI’s By-Laws provide that, by resolution of the Board, each Director shall receive a per
diem allowance for his attendance at each meeting of the Board. As compensation, the Board
shall receive and allocate an amount of not more than ten (10%) of the net income before tax
of the corporation during the preceding year. Such compensation shall be determined and
apportioned among the directors in such manner as the Board may deem proper, subject to
the approval of the stockholders representing at least majority of the outstanding capital stock
at a regular or special meeting of the stockholders. With respect to directors’ remuneration,
the directors are being paid directors’ fees of 280,000 each per annum. Payment of directors’
fee of 80,000 per director for 2018 will be presented to the stockholders for approval at the
annual stockholders’ meeting. Each director also receives an amount of B10,000 per diem for
attendance at every board meeting.



¢. There are no other standard or special arrangements and no special consulting contracts
awarded to any director or officer of KPPI by which they were compensated, or to be
compensated, directly or indirectly, and there are no amounts payable to any of the directors
arising from participation in any working committee or special assignments in the current
fiscal year or in the coming year.

d. There are no employment contract/s, termination and change in control arrangements
including pension/s or retirement plan/s in which any of the directors and officers will
participate.

e. There are no outstanding warrants or options held by the registrant’s chief executive officers,
executive officers and all officers and directors as a group.

13. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
fa) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners:

As of 31 December 2017, KPP1 has no knowledge of any individual or any party who
beneficially owns Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. stock in excess of 5% of KPPI's common
stock except as set forth in the table below:

Name of’
Title of Class Name and Adda'flzss of: Rec.orcl 2‘::::{;;?:02;;:? Citizenship No. of Shares Percent of
Owner and relationship with KPPI with Record Held Class
Owner
Common Keppel Land Limited ! Same as Record Singaporean 148,365,050 50.49%
Shares 230 Victoria Street, Owner
of Stock #15-05 Bugis Junction Towers,
Singapore 188024
(Stockholder)
Comumon Kepwealth, Inc, 2 Same as Record Filipino 51,033,178 17.37%
Shares Unit 3-B Country Space [ Bidg., Owner
of Stock Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue,
Makati City
{Stockholbder)
Common Keppel Corporation Limited * Same as Record Singaporean 35,783,742 12.18%
Shares { HarbourFront Avenue Owner
of Stock #18-01 Keppel Bay Tower,
Singapore 098632
(Stockholder)
Common PCP Nominee Corp. — Filipino * Various * Filipino 31,035,914 10.56%
Shares 37/F Enterprise Bidg. Ayaia
of Stock Avenue, Makati City 1226

1. Mr, Sam Moon Thong; is authorized as proxy to vote for the sharehotdings of Keppel Land Limited.

2. Mr. Stefan Tong Wai Mun, or in his absence, the Chairman of the meeting is duly authorized as proxy {o vole in the shares of Kepweallh
i KPPL

3. Mr. Stefan Tong Wai Mun, or in his absence, the Chainnan of the meeting is duly autherized as proxy to vate tor the shareheldings of
KCL in KPPL

4. PCD Neminee Corporation (PCNC) is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Philippine Central Depository, a corporation established to

improve operations in securities transactions and to provide a fast, safe and highly efficient system for securities settlement in the
Phifippines. PCNC acts as trustee-nominee for all shares lodged in the PCD system, where trades effected on the Philippine Stock Exchange
are finally settled with the PCD, However, while PCNC is the actual shareholder in the said company, shares held by PCNC do not grant
voting powers to it as beneficial ownership of the shares still remain with the lodging steckholder. By policy, PCNC does not vete the

shares it was entrusted with in its name.
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5.

Molten Pte. Lid is the beneficial owner of the following shares of KPP as of 31 December 2018:

(b)

(c)

(d)

No. of shares held % of class
Molten Pee. Lid 18,496,616 6.29%

Security Ownership of Directors and Management:

As at 31 December 2018, the shareholdings of all Directors of Keppel Philippines Properties,
Inc. are set forth in the table below:

Titte of Class Name of Beneficial Amount and Nature of Citizenshi Percent of
Owner Beneficial Ownership p Class
Commeon Shares | Lim Kei Hin 1* Singaporean 0.00%
of Stock
Common Shares Ramon §. Abejueta 1 Filipino 0.00%
of Stock
Common Shares | Celso P. Vivas | Filipino 0.00%
of Stock
Common Shares | Sam Moon Thong 1 Singaporean 0.00%
of Stock
Common Shares | Stefan Tong Wat Mun 10,000 Malaysian 0.00%
of Stock
Common Shares | Oh Lock Soon 1 Singaporean 0.00%
of Stock
Common Shares | Tan Siew Ngok 1 Singaporean 0.00%
of Stock

*To be trangferred to Ms. Tan Boon Ping, who was elected us Director of KPP on 14 Janary 2012 as his replacement.
As disclosed above, apart from the President, who is also a Director of KPP, none of the
compensated executive officers have Security Ownership in KPPI as shown in the list of
shareholders’ purchases as provided by KPPPs transfer agent.

Voting Trust Holders of 5% or more

As at December 31, 2018, there are no individuals or parties who hold 5% or more of KPPI’s
common stock under a voting trust or similar agreement.

Changes in control

There were no events or arrangements which may result in a change in control of KPPL.




14, CERTAIN RELATIONSHIFPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

15.

a} During the last two (2) years, no director of KPPI has received or become entitled to receive any
benefit by reason of any contract with KPPI, a related corporation, a firm of which the director
is a member or a company of which a director has a substantial financial interest.

There are no transactions in the last two (2) years or proposed transactions to which the
registrant was or is to be a party, in which any of the following persons had or is to have a
direct or indirect material interest:

i Any director or executive officer of the Corporation

ii. Any nominee for election as a director;,

iii. Any security holders;

iv. Any member of the immediate family of the preceding persons.

by The parent company of the registrant is KLL, who owns 50.49% of KPPI’s capital stock.

Details of KPPI's related party transactions are explained in Note 10 of the Notes to the Audited
Financial Statements of KPPI (Pages 46-48),

PART IV - CORPORATLE GOVERNANCE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

KPPI complies with the principles and practices of good corporate governance by adherence to its
Amended Manual on Corporate Governance (“the Amended Manual™).

It has a Compliance Officer who diligently performs the duties and responsibilities under the
Amended Manual, by reporting to Directors and Officers the pertinent requirements on corporate
governance from time to time, and monitoring the compliance of such requirements. The Amended
Manual is updated by incorporating new and improved governance and management practices,
obtained through attendance at corporate governance seminars conducted by institutions accredited
by SEC. The appointment/designation of the Compliance Officer has been immediately disclosed
to the Securities and Exchange Commission {SEC) and the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

The Beard of Directors (“The Board™) has continued to observe KPPI’s corporate missions and
visions to ensure the long-term success of the Corporation and its continued competitiveness in the
industry,

The Compliance Officer ensures that the Board of Directors, its officers and employees comply with
all the leading practices and principles on good corporate governance as embodied in the Parent
Company’s Amended Manual. KPPI also complies with the appropriate seff-rating assessment and
performance evaluation system to determine and measure compliance in accordance with the
Amended Manual.

KPPI has created committees required under the Amended Manual, namely, Audit Committee,
Nominations/Screening Committee, and Compensation/Remuneration Commiittee. The creation of
said committees and the corresponding members thereof have been immediately disclosed to the
SEC and the PSE. Each committee aforementioned performed their functions and responsibilities
set forth in the Amended Manual.




16.

The Audit Committee meets regularly to review alf financial reports to comply with relevant
accounting and regulatory standards, and performs oversight of financial management functions. As
required by the Rules, two (2) independent directors are members of the Audit Committee, with one
(1) independent director serving as head of said Committee.

The Nomination/Screening Committee complied with the provisions of the Corporation’s Amended
Manual of Corporate Governance on the pre-screening of all candidates nominated to become a

member of the Board of Directors. The qualifications of director mentioned in the Amended Manual
have also been strictly followed.

All of the directoss of KPPl have attended and actively participated in Corporate Governance
Seminars.

KPPI has submitted its Annual Corporate Governance Report to SEC and PSE on 30 May 2018 and
31 May 2018, respectively.
PART V- EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES
EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON SEC FORM 17-C
{a) Exhibits- See accompanying Index to Exhibits (page 103)

The following exhibit is filed as a separate section of this report:
No. (18) on Index to Exhibits - Subsidiaries of the Registrant {page 104)

The other exhibits, as indicated in the Index to Exhibits are either not applicable to KPPI or
require no answer.

{b) Reports on SEC Form 17-C
Reports on SEC Form 17-C filed during the last twelve (12) month period covered by this
report are as follows:

Date Events Reported
21 March 2018 Approval and release of Audited Financial Statements and SEC Form

17-A as at 31 December 2017

27 March 2018 Schedule, venue and agenda of the Y2018 Annual Stockholders’
Meeting of the Corporation

5 April 2018 Approval of Director’s remuneration and Appointment of External
Auditor

5 April 2018 Amendment of Articles Sixth and Seventh of the Articles of
Incorporation as approved by Board of Directors

{7 May 2018 Results of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting for Y2018

{8 May 2018 Amendment of Articles Sixth and Seventh of the Articles of

Incorporation as approved by Stockholders

10 August 2018 Demise of Director
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FOREIGN SERVICE OF THE
REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES

EMBASSY OF THE PHILIPPINES )
Consular Section ) S.S.
Singapore )

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

I, LAARNI ZORAYDA S. GANDAROSA, Vice Consul _of the Embassy of
the Republic of the Philippines to Singapore, duly commissioned and qualified, do
hereby certifythat LIM CHEE KIANG

before whom the annexed instrument has been executed, to wit:

NOTARIAL CERTIFICATE WITH ANNEXED STATEMENT OF
MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&l was at the time he/she signed the same NOTARY PUBLIC

and that his/her signature affixed thereto is genuine.

The Embassy assumes no responsibility for the contents of the annexed
instrument. ‘

N WITNESS HEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the

mbassy of the Philippines in Singapore this day of 01 April2019
Service No. : 3261
O.R.No. : 2332356 '
Fee Paid : g40 50 LAARNI ZORMYDA S. GANDAROSA
Vicgf/ Consul

The validity of this certification
shall follow the validity of the
attached/underlying document.



CERTIFICATE OF NOTARY PUBLIC

BE IT KNOWN
I, LIM CHEE KIANG, NOTARY PUBLIC, duly appointed in the Republic of

Singapore

CERTIFY

That the document hereunto annexed as produced to me, is an original letter
dated 26 March 2019 captioned: “STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS” issued by Keppel Philippines
Properties, Inc. and signed on its behalf by its authorized signatory, Sam

Moon Thong.

IN FAITH AND TESTIMONY whereof I the said notary have hereunto
subscribed my name and set and affixed my seal of office at Singapore, this
28t day of March 2019.

NOTARY PUBLIC
REPUBLIC OF SINGAPORE

1 Coleman Street, #B1-21, The Adelphi, Singapore 179803 Tel: 65-6224 4768



Kebpel 1

Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc, Tel: (632) 5846170
Units 1802B-1803 The Podium West Tower

12 ADB Avenue, Ortigas Center

Mandaluyong City 1550, Philippines

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries (“the Group”) is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements,
including the schedules attached therein, as at and for the years ended December 31,2018
and 2017, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud of error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either

intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements including
the schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders.

Isla Lipana & Co., the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders, has audited the

consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairess of

presentation upon comipletion of such audit. ‘

SAM MOON THONG
Chairman of the Board

President

PANG CHAN FAN
Treasurer

Signed this 26 day of March 2019

A member of the Keppel Group of Singapore
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries
18th Floor, The Podium West Tower

12 ADB Avenue, Ortigas Center

Mandaluyong City

Our Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of Keppel Philippine Properties, Inc. and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018 in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise:

e the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2018 and 2017;

¢ the consolidated statements of total comprehensive income for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2018;

o the consolidated statements of changes in equity for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2018;

o the consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2018; and

¢ the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion,

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in
the Philippines (Code of Ethics), together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

Isla Lipana & Co., 29th Floor, Philamlife Tower, 8767 Paseo de Roxas, 1226 Makati City, Phlltppmes
T: +63 (2) 845 2728, F: +63 (2) 845 2806, www.pwce.com/ph

Isla Lipana & Co. is the Philippine member firm of the PwC network. PwC refers to the Philippine member firm, and may sometimes refer to the PwG network. Each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Please see www.pwc.com/structure for further details.
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To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries
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Our Audit Approach

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement
in the consolidated financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made subjective
judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions
and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the
risk of management override of internal controls, including among other matters, consideration of
whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group, the
accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

How our audit addressed the

Key Audit Matter Key Audit Matter
Impairment of investments in associates and joint
venture
Refer to Notes 6 and 19 to the consolidated We have performed procedures to independently
financial statements for the details of investments  assess if the losses incurred in 2018 indicate
in associates and joint venture. impairment. We have performed the following;:
During the year, the Group incurred a negative a) Detailed understanding of the reasons for the
share in results of associated companies losses incurred.
amounting to P57.08 million. This maybe an b) Detailed understanding and independent
indicator of possible impairment of investments in verification of the long term profit and cash
associates and joint venture at December 31, 2018. flow generating capacity of the individual

assets of the investees.
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter Key Audit Matter

Based on the procedures performed, we have
concluded that there are no impairment indicators
and reported losses incurred is temporary based on
the objective evidences as follows:

a) The losses are substantially attributable to the
full year depreciation impact of a prime
investment property by an investee which was
just completed in late 2017. The depreciation
and certain fixed costs were not yet fully covered
by rental income in 2018 as tenants have only
started to lease the properties during varying
periods within 2018.

b) The leasable areas of the subject prime property
have been substantially leased out as of
December 31, 2018 and are expected to be fully
leased out by 2019.

¢) Based on the short and long term forecast, the
said prime property will generate sustained
profit from rental income, carpark revenues and
cinema sales.

Based on the foregoing, no impairment is deemed
necessary.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement) and SEC Form 17-A, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The SEC Form 20-18
(Definitive Information Statement) and SEC Form 17-A are expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor's report,

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the ability of
each entity with the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of each entity with the Group to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
entities to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Roderick M. Danao.

Isld{lipana & Co.

RodEfick M. Danao

Pa r

CPA'(ert. No. 88453

P.T.R. No. 0011280, issued on January 8, 2019 at Makati City

SEC A.N. (individual) as general auditors 1585-A, Category A; effective until September 27, 2019
SEC A.N. (firm) as general auditors 0009-FR-5, Category A; effective until June 20, 2021

TIN 152-015-078

BIR A.N. 08-000745-042-2018, issued on February 2, 2018; effective until February 1, 2021
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0142, effective until September 30, 2020

Makati City
March 26, 2019
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December 31, 2018 and 2017 \ _ il " —— J
(All amounts in Philippine Peso) | g meCeVED S oG ——
Notes 2018 2017
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2 138,059,462 178,689,036
Receivables 3 1,394,693 1,014,492
Due from related parties 10 99,841,251 100,331,592
Prepayments and other current assets 4 23,954,364 22,356,410
Total current assets 263,249,770 302,391,530
Non-current assets
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 5 79,512,230 -
Available-for-sale financial assets 5 - 79,512,230
Investments in associates and a joint venture 6 1,185,757,851 1,242629,719
Property and equipment, net 7 976,172 1,211,206
Refundable deposits 72,300 72,300
Retirement benefit asset 15 238,091 58,823
Deferred income tax assets, net 13 1,830,558 1,481,979

Total non-current assets

1,268,387,202

1,324,966,257

Total assets

1,631,636,972

1,627,357,787

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and other current liabilities 8 23,079,422 11,559,677
Due to related parties 10 57,989,202 47,701,578
Income tax payable 38,084 24,317

Total liabilities 81,106,708 59,285,572

Equity 9

Share capital 356,104,000 366,104,000
Share premium 602,885,517 602,885,517
Treasury shares (2,667,645) (2,667,645)
Other reserves 1,008,581 353,667
Retained earnings 493,199,811 611,396,676

Total equity

1,450,530,264

1,668,072,215

Total liabilities and equity

1,531,636,972

1,627,357,787

The notes from pages 1 to 49 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Total Comprehensive Income
For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018
{All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Notes 2018 2017 2016
Revenue and income (loss)
Management consultancy and franchise fees 10 9,651,998 5,422 544 5,506,688
interest income 2 4,202 521 3,197,901 1,912,562
Share in results of associated companies G {57,083,088) 13,743,107 6,754,238
{43,228,569) 22,363,552 14,173,488
General and administrative expehses 11 {74,235,415) {58,815,764) (44,996,312)
Other income {expense}, net 12 238,708 {1,891,135) 1,310,578
Loss before income tax (117,225,276) {38,343,347) (29,512,248)
Income tax benefit (expense) 13 {971,589) 494 407 (662,363)
Net toss for the year {118,196,865)  (37,848,940)  (30,174,609)
Other comprehensive income (loss) '
ltems that will not be subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss
Actuarial gain (loss) on defined benefit plan 15 633,848 (172,189) {149,9889)
Deferred income tax relating to actuarial
loss (gain) 15 {190,154) 51,657 44,997
Share in actuarial gains (losses) of
an associate and a joint venture 6 211,220 (205,211) (150,656)
654,914 (325,743) (255,648)
Total comprehensive loss for the year {117,541,951) {38,174,683) {30,430,257)
Basic and diluted loss per share 14 (0.40) (6.13) {0.10)

The notes from pages 1 to 49 are integral part of these financial statements,




"STUSUISIE]S [RIOURUY PR1EPI0SU0d 3831} Jo Jred [rideiut axe 6¥ 01 T safed uo soyjou ayy,

¥OZ'085'05¥' L LL8'66L'S6F  LEPOEE 051829 (5¥9'/99'2)  215°G88'209 00L'W/P'6S 006'629'067 8LOZ ‘L Jeqwesag je saouejeg
(Le6'Lre'211)  (Gog'9BL'BLL) 02Z'1LT +69'CYY - - - - 1ok syl Ioj (sso))
BWOosUl BAISUSY2dwWoD [B10 |
16759 - ocT'ile PEG'SHY - - - - 202Ul BAISUBY1AWOD JBUI0
(gog'o6L'8LL)  (cog'oBL'sLL) - - - - - - Jesd auj 10} $SO| JaN
awoou] aalsusyardwon
GLZ'2/0'895'L  9/9°96E'LLS  LLZ'BLL elep A (5v9'299'7)  L16°G88'709 00L'¥i¥'6S 006'6Z9°96Z  LLOZ ‘L€ J9qWada( € sasuejeq
(£89'¥L1'8%) (ove'spe'ze)  (112'502) (zes'ozi) - - - - 122k ayl 10)
$50| aajsusyaIdwos .o |
(evi'see) - {Li2'sne) {(zes'ozy) - . - - $50| aAISUBYSIdWOD 18Uy
(ov6'sv8°2¢) (or6'8ps’ze) - - - - - - Jeak au) 10} $$0| 1aN
awoau saisusyaidwon
868'0FZ'009'L  9LO'SPZ'6PS ZZPpES 886'¥5¢ (Gb0'/99'7)  L16'G88'209 O00L'v/¥'65 006'629'062 9102 ‘LT Joquiased je saoueegy
{igz'0ev'08) 809'v21'08)  (959'05L) (zB6'%0L) - - - - 1EaA By 10y
$50} 2AISUayaIdiu0d 1810
{aro'ss?) - {059'051) (z66'v0L) - - - - $50] aAIsUaya1dwsd 1Bl
(B09'¥LL'08) (09'v2L'08) - - - - - - JeaA 3y} 10} $SO| 19N
awosul anisuayatdwon
SGL'Z/9'9EQ' L SZZ0ZF'6L9 8L0'Siy 086'65t (6v9'299'2)  L16'G8R'Z00 00L'WI¥F'6S 006'629°062 9102 ‘4 Atenuep je saoueeg
funba jgjorl (6 @30N) (62 9sa0N) (519 65930N) (6 @0N) (6 @30N) {6 @210N) (6 230N}
sbujuiea ainjuaajuio!  ueld Jyeusq SaJBYs wnjwaad paliajaid UOWILIOS
pauielay E pue pauyep uo Ansealy aieyg leydeo aseyg
ajeposse uleh jenemoy
ue jo

uieB jeuenyoe

ui aueys

sanPsal 1BYI0

(0894 surddifiyq ur syunoure [[y)
8103 “I€ 1oquIada(] popus porad a1 Ui STBIK 92143} 97 JO YorD 104
Aynby ur seduey) Jo sjusWIalEIS PIAIBPIOSUO))

saLIeIpISqng pue -duj ‘sonsadory ssurddiyg addayy



Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018
(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Notes 2018 2017 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before income tax (117,225,276} (38,343,347) (29,512,248)
Adjustments for.
Share in results of associated companies 6 57,083,088 (13,743,107} (6,754,238)
Retirement benefit expense 15 521,220 328,438 145,914
Depreciation expense 7,11 351,105 317,416 134,213
Foreign exchange gain, net 18.1a - (1,247} (3,120)
Gain on sale of property and equipment 10,12 - {140,000} {100,000)
Provision for doubtful accounts 12 - 2,666 664 -
Gain on reversal of liabilities 8,12 {162,849} (446,198) (1,279,248)
Interest income 2 (4,202,521} (3,197,901} {1,912,662)
Operating loss before working capital changes (63,635,233) (52,559,282) (39,281,284)
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables (287,432) 740,051 2,567,964
Due from related parties 600,457 {1,821,060) (684,556)
Prepayments and other current assets (1,597,954) (44,741) (2,589 438)
Increase in:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 11,682,594 5,151,796 1,207,159
Due to related parties 10,287,624 7,399,186 3,885
Net cash used in operations (42,949,944) (41,134,050) {38,776,270)
Contribution to the retirement plan 15 (442,310) (139,286) (139,286}
interest received 4,109,752 2,940,196 1,827,897
income tax paid (1,496,555) {1,062,071) (819,819)
Net cash used in operating activities (40,779,057) (39,395,211) (37,907,478)
Cash flows from investing activities
Return of investments from an associate 10 265,554 14,541,618 -
Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits - 47,808 (12,998)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment - 140,000 100,000
Decrease in amounts due from related parties 10 - - 35,733,200
Acquisitions of property and equipment - 7 (116,071) (517,280) {961,303)
Net cash provided by investing activities 149,483 14,212,146 34,858,899
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (40,629,574} (25,183,065) {3.048,579)
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 178,689,036 203,870,854 206,916,313
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents - 1,247 3,120
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 2 138,069,462 178,689,036 203,870,854

The notes on pages 1 to 49 are integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Ag at and for the years ended Decermber 31, 2018 and 2017
and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018

(In the Notes, all amounts are shown in Philippine Peso unless otherwise indicated)

Note 1 - Corporate information

Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. (“Parent Company”) was incorporated in the Philippines and
registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 7, 1918, The
Parent Company's corporate life was extended for another fifty (50) years starting February 7, 1968,
On June 11, 2016, the shareholders approved the amendment of the Parent Company’s Articles of
Incorporation to further extend its corporate life for another 50 years starting February 6, 2018.
The extension of the term of the Parent Company’s existence was approved by the Philippine SEC
on May 5, 2017,

The Parent Company is listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) through an initial public offering
(IPO) in 1989. There was no further follow on offering after the IPO. Its immediate parent company is
Keppel Land Limited (KLL) and the ultimate parent company is Keppel Corporation Limited (KCL),
both incorporated in Singapore. KCL is listed in the Singapore Exchange (SGX).

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the top five shareholders of the Parent Company are the foliowing;

Percentage of ownership

Shareholders 2018 2017
KLL 50% 50%
Kepwealth, inc. 17% 17%
KCL 12% 12%
Molten Pte Lid 7% 7%
Public* 14% 14%

* 8% direct ownership and 6% through PCD Nominee Corporation as at December 31, 2018 and 2017,

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Parent Company’s subsidiaries, associates and joint
venture, which were all incorporated in the Philippines are as follows:

Effective
Percentage ownership
of ownership interest Nature of business
Subsidiaries
CSRI Investment Corporation (CSRI) 100% 100% {nvestment holding
Buena Homes, Inc. (BHI) 100 100 invesiment holding
Associates
Opon Realty and Development Corporation
{ORDC) 40 40 Investment holding
Opon Ventures, Inc. (OVI) 40 64 Real estaie development
Opon-KE Properties, Inc. (OKEP) 40 78 investment holding
Buena Homes {Sandovat), Inc. (BHSI) - 61 Residential property development
Joint venture
SM Keppel Land, Inc. (SMKL) 40 48 Lease of mall and office spaces,

cinema ticket sales and carpark
operation
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The Parent Company, together with its subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture are collectively
referred to as “The Group”.

The Group’s principal office address is 12 ADB Avenue, Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City. On
December 6, 2010, the Group submitted a notification to SEC to temporarily change its business
address to Units 2203 and 2204, Raffles Corporate Center, F. Ortigas Jr. Road (formerly Emerald
Avenue), Ortigas Center, Pasig City due to the ongoing construction by the lessor of the Group’s
principal office, On February 28, 2019, the Group moved back to its principal office in 18th Floor, The
Podium West Tower, 12 ADB Avenue, Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City.

The Group holds investments in associates and joint venture involved in property development
{Note 6) and renders management consultancy services to associates (Note 10).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been approved and authorized for issuance by
the Board of Directors (BOD) on March 26, 2019,

Note 2 - Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as at December 31 consist of:

2018 2017
Cash in banks 20,592,494 18,215,016
Cash equivalents 117,374,473 160,381,525
Cash on hand 92 495 92,495

138,059,462 178,689,036

Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents are short-term
deposits made for varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates that range from
0.55% to 5.25% per annum in 2018 (2017 - 0.525% to 2.00% per annum; 2016 - 0.525% to 1.625% per
annum).

Interest income from cash and cash equivalents amounted P4.2 million in 2018 (2017 - P3,2 million;
2016 - P1.¢ million). Accrued interest receivable on money market placements is presented as part of
Receivables (Note 3) and will form part of the investment carrying amount upon maturity.

Note 3 - Receivables

Receivables as at December 31 consist of:

Note 2018 2017

Non-trade 2,666,664 2,666,664
Accrued income 850,321 460,984
Accrued interest 2 454,169 379,954
Receivables from employees 58,203 164,293
Others 32,000 9,261

4,061,357 3,681,156
Allowance for impairment loss {2,666,664) {2,666,664)

1,394,693 1,014,492

{2) - 38 -



Accrued income pertains to aceruals for management and franchise fee revenue and are collectible
within one year.

Receivables from employees represent non-interest bearing loans granted to employees that are
collected through salary deduction and are collectible within one year.

Non-trade receivable pertains to the receivable arising from an agreement of the Group with a third
partly entered into on October 24, 2013 to sell its fully depreciated investment properties, Asat
December 31, 2018 and 2017, full allowance was provided for the receivable, subject to reversal until
such time the Management can determine the probable amount to be recovered from the third party.

Note 4 - Prepayments and other current assets

Prepayments and other current assets as at December 31 consist of:

2018 2017
Prepaid income taxes 18,562,802 17,692,826
Prepayments 2,548,725 2,245,700
input value added tax 2,842 737 2,417,884

23,954 364 22,356,410

Prepaid income taxes pertain to the amounts withheld by the Group’s counterparties in relation to
management consultancy fees. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, Management has determined that
these are recoverable and can be applied against future income taxes. Projected taxable income is
expected to increase significantly upon the completion of the “Podium” starting 2019.

Prepayments include advance rental and deposits amounting to P2.3 million as at December 31, 2018
(2017 - Pr.9 million), related from the transfer of the Parent Company’s office to a temporary address,
and rental of residential properties for the Group’s officers (Note 16).

Note 5 - Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income/
Available-for-sale financiai assets

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) as at December 31, 2018
are presented below. These were classified as available-for-sale {(AFS) financial assets as at

December 31, 2017. Notes 19.1 and 20 explain the change of accounting policy and the reclassification
of equity investments from AFS to at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Note Amount

Preferred equity securities B 79,287,230
Club shares 225,000
79,512,230

Preferred equity securities pertain to investments in redeemable preferred shares of OVI and OKEP
which were acquired in 2012 at ten pesos (P10) per share. These investments are classified as AFS
financial assets as the characteristics of the investment do not give the Group significant influence over
OVI and OKEP (Note 6). These investments are carried at cost less impairment as they do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and their fair values cannot be reliably measured (Note 19).
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The features and conditions of the redeemable preferred shares are as follows:

* Non-voting, except for the cases provided for under Section 6, Paragraph 6 of the Corporation Code

of the Philippines.

« Entitled to preference in the distribution of dividends. After payment of such preferred dividends,
the holders of such preferred shares shall be entitled to participate pro rata with holders of

common shares in the remaining profits,

»  Redeemable at the option of the issuer, in full or in part, within a period of ten (10) years from date
of issuance, at a price to be determined by the BOD,

s If not redeemed within the period of ten (10) years, the holder shall have the option to:

(a) Convert the preferred shares to participating preferred shares; or
(b) Hold the redeemable preferred shares for another five {5) years, after which the holder can

choose to convert to either common shares or participating preferred shares,

Note 6 - Investments in associates and a joint venture

Details of investments in associates and a joint venture as at December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017 2016
Cost
At January 1 683,243,174 806,321,443 806,321,443
Return of investments - {123,078,269) -
At December 31 683,243,174 683,243,174 806,321,443
Accumulated share in results of associated
companies presented in profit or loss
At January 1 559,267,334 545,524,227 538,769,989
Share in results of associated companies
recognized in profit or loss (567,083,088) 13,743,107 6,754,238
At December 31 502,184,246 559 267,334 545 624 227
Presented in other comprehensive income
At January 1 119,211 324,422 475,078
Share in other comprehensive income {loss) 211,220 (205,211) {150,656)
At December 31 330,431 119,211 324,422

1,185,757,851

1,242,629,719

1,352,170,092

The carrying values of the Group’s investments in associates and a joint venture and the related

percentages of ownership are shown below:

Percentage of

ownership Carrying amount
2018 2017 2018 2017
Associates
BHSI 40%  40% 33,002,817 33,655,724
OKEP 40%  40% 83,891,065 91,168,886
ovi 40%  40% 18,761,317 23,171,311
ORDC 40% - 40% 12,831,450 15,529,087
Joint venture
SMKL 40%  40%  1,037,181,202 1,079,104,731

1,185,757,851

1,242 629,719
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The associates and joint venture were accounted for using the equity method. For the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, there were no dividends received from the associates and joint venture.
As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, there were no quoted prices for these investments,

BHSI is involved in the construction of a residential condominium project which has been completed in
2003. BHSI's primary activity in 2018 and 2017 involved the sale of these condominium units. As at
December 31, 2018, only four (4) units remain unsold. The primary purpose of the Group’s other
associates is to acquire by purchase, lease, and to own, use, improve, develop, subdivide, sell, mortgage,
exchange, lease, develop and hold for investment or otherwise, real estate of all kinds.

On December 22, 2011, the BOD of BHS! approved the plan to decrease its authorized share capital. In
2012, the Group received from BHSI an amount of P100 million, which represented advances to BHI
and OKEP amounting to P59.7 million and P40.3 million, respectively. The P40.3 million was received
by the Group in behalf of OKEP, In 2014, the Group received additional advances P24.0 million from
BHSI, thereby increasing the Group’s advances from BHSI to P83.7 million as at December 31, 2016.

BHSI has filed with SEC the amendments to its articles of incorporation and by-laws to decrease its
authorized capital. These amendments were approved by the SEC on September 15, 2017. In relation
to this, the Group recorded the approved reduction over BHSI's share capital amounting to P123.1
million, as an equitable amount over its 40% investment. The settlement of return of investment is
consisted of offsetting of prior year advances from BHSI amounting to P83.7 million, as discussed
above, and cash proceeds amounting to P14.5 million. The unpaid balance amounting to P24.9 million
is presented as due from related parties in the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017.
The return did not result to any gain or loss.

The offsetting of prior year advances to return of investment is presented as non-cash transaction in
the statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2017.

SMKL's primary business activity is to operate and maintain office and shopping center spaces for rent,
carpark and cinema. The Company is involved in a mixed-use development comprising of retail spaces
in “The Podium Mall” and office spaces in “The Podium West Tower” that is located in Ortigas Center,
Mandaluyong City. The Podium Mall consist of a five-level retail mall with an approximate gross
Jeasable area of 46,000 sqm and a six-level basement carpark with a gross leasable area of 75,300 sqm.
The construction of The Podium West Tower, with an approximate gross leasable area of 100,100 sqm,
started in 2014 and is expected to be completed in the second quarter of 2019,

Significant financial information of the associates follows:

{In millions) BHSI OKEP oVl QRDC
December 31, 2018
Current assets 144.9 842 0.3 4.9
Non-current assets 1.1 244.9 119.8 81.9
Total assets 146.0 329.1 120.1 86.8
Current liabilities 62.0 70.4 2.2 72.8
Non-current liabilities 0.3 - - -
Total liabilities 62.3 70.4 22 72.8
Net assefs 83.7 258.7 117.9 14.0
Gross revenue (loss) 4.0 (10.1) - -
Net income (loss) for the year (1.6) {10.4) {0.1) {0.1)
Other comprehensive income (10ss) 0.2 01 - -
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year (1.4) {10.3) {0.1) 0.1
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(In miflions) BHS! OKEP OVl ORDC
December 31, 2017
Current assets 151.1 83.5 0.3 4.8
Non-current assets 0.3 255.8 119.8 82.0

Total assets 151.4 339.3 1201 86.8
Current liabilities 66.3 70.3 2.1 72.7
Non-current iabilities - - - -

Total liabilities 66.3 70.3 2.1 72.7

Net assets 85.1 269.0 118.0 14.1
Gross revenue 3.2 2.4 - 0.8
Net income {loss) for the year {4.4) 2.2 {0.1) 0.6
Other comprehensive income {loss) {0.2) {0.1) - -
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year {4.6) 2.1 {0.1) 0.6

Significant financial information of the joint venture follows:
SMKL.

{in millions) 2018 2017
Current assets 1,860.7 3,231.2
Cash and cash equivaients 590.8 22617
Non-current assets 8,738.8 6,038.6
tnvestment properties 8,656.7 59959
Current liabilities 2,575.1 1,713.6
Non-current liabilities 5,800.0 52270
Net assets 2,224.4 2,329.2
Gross revenue 3283 191.3
Interest income 0.8 0.8
Depreciation and amortization (118.8) (38.3)
Interest expense (102.5) {(11.9)
tncome tax benefit 454 4.0
Net income (loss) for the year (105.1) 32.0
Other comprehensive income {loss) 0.2 (0.1)
Total comprehensive income {loss) for the year {104.8) 31.9

The reconciliation of the associates’ and joint venture’s net assets multiplied by the ownership interest
and the carrying amount of each investments is shown in the table below:

Note BHSI QKEP oVl ORDBC SMiKL
December 31, 2018
Net assets 83,666,359 257,524 322 117,920,823 14,014,088  2,224,391,605
Ownership interest 40% 40% 40% 40% 40%
33,466,544 103,009,729 47,168,329 5,605,995 889,756,642
Investments in redeemable
preferred shares 5 (31,287,230} (48,000,600) - -
Fair value adjustments (373,727} 12,168,566 19,692,088 7,225,455 147,424 580
33,092,817 83,891,065 18,761,317 12,831,450 1,037,181,202
December 31, 2017
Net assets 85,073,628 269,114,826 118,029,079 14,173,831 2,3259,200,428
Ownership interest 40% 40% 40% 40% 40%
34,029,451 107,645,830 47,211,632 5,669,632 931,680,171
Investments in redeemable
preferred shares 5 - (31,287,230) (48,000,000} - -
Fair value adjustments {373,727) 14,810,186 23,950,679 9,859 535 147,424,560
33,655,724 91,168,886 23,171,311 15,529,067 1,079,104,731%
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Note 7 - Property and equipment, net

Details of property and equipment as at and for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Transportation Office Furniture
Notes equipment equipment  and fixtures Total

Cost

At January 1, 2017 686,323 2,709,871 2,479,885 5,876,079

Additions - 517,280 - 517,280

Disposals (686,323) - - (686,323)

Write-offs - {265,030 - (265,030)

At December 31, 2017 - 2,962,121 2,479,885 5,442,006

Additions - 116,071 - 116,071

At December 31, 2018 - 3,078,192 2,479,885 5,658,077
Accumulated depreciation

At January 1, 2017 686,323 1,766,329 2,412,085 4,864,737

Depreciation 11 - 296,825 20,591 317,416

Disposals. {686,323) - . (686,323)

Write-offs - (265,030) - (265,030)

At December 31, 2017 - 1,798,124 2,432 676 4,230,800

Depreciation 11 - 330,521 20,584 351,105

At December 31, 2018 - 2,128,645 2,453,260 4,581,905
Net carrying amount

At December 31, 2017 - 1,163,997 47,209 1,211,206

At December 31, 2018 - 949 547 26,625 976,172

The cost of fully depreciated property and equipment still used in operations amounted to P4.0 million
as of December 31, 2018 (2017 - P3.8 million),

In 2017, obsolete office equipment amounting to Po.3 million were written-off,
Gains and losses from disposal of property and equipment are disclosed in Note 12,

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group’s management has assessed that no objective evidence
and indicators of impairment exist.

Note 8 - Accounts pavable and other current liabilities

Accounts payable and other liabilities as at December 31 consist of;

2018 2017
Accrued expenses 12,609,047 7,916,991
Taxes payable 9,754,695 2,818,001
Dividends payable 553,981 553,981
Accounts payable 161,699 270,704

23,079,422 11,550,677
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Acerued expenses mainly pertain to accruals on salaries and other employee benefits and professional
fees which are to be settled within 30 to 60 days. In 2018, portion of the accruals for bonus and
professional fees made in 2017 totalling to Po.2 million was reversed (2017 - Po.4 million). The gain
arising from this reversal is included in “Other income (expense), net” in the consolidated statements of
total comprehensive income {Note 12).

Taxes payable pertains to the amount withheld for transactions subject to withholding tax which are to
be remitted the following month after the reporting date.

Accounts payable represents payables to suppliers and are normally settled the following month.

Dividends payable pertains to the dividends declared when the Parent Company’s name was still Cebu
Shipyard and Engineering Works, Inc. but remains unclaimed by shareholders to date.

Note 9 - Equity

(a) Share capital and treasury shares

Share capital as at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 consist of:

Number of
shares Amount
Commeon shares - P1 par value
Authorized 375,000,000
Issued 296,629 900 296,629,900
Preferred shares - P1 par value
Authorized 135,700,000
lssued 58,474 100 598,474,100
356,104,000
Treasury shares 2,801,000 (2,667,645)
353,436,355

The Parent Company has one thousand forty (1,040) shareholders, each owning one hundred (100) or
more shares as at December 31, 2018 (2017 - 1,042).

Preferred shares, which were issued on November 11, 2003 at a price of P10 per share, are redeemable
in full or in part at the option of the Parent Company, within a call period of seven (7) years from

May 31, 2011, the date of approval of the SEC. On April 5, 2018 and May 17, 2018, the extension of the
call period of the preferred shares for a period of five (5) years from May 31, 2018 was approved by the
Parent Company’s BOD and stockholders, respectively. As of reporting date, the Group is in the
process of submitting the necessary documents to SEC for the approval of the extension of the
redemption period for another five (5) years. The redemption price will be equivalent to the issue price
with an annual premium to be approved by the BOD. The fairness of the annual premium must be
confirmed by an independent financial advisor.

No preferred shares have been redeemed in 2018 and 2017,

Preferred shareholders have preference over common shareholders with respect to the distribution of
assets npon dissolution but not with respect to the payment of dividends.
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Preferred shareholders are not entitled to dividends, Moreover, no voting right is vested on the
preferred shareholders, except for the cases provided for under Section 6, Paragraph 6 of the
Corporation Code of the Philippines.

(b) Share premium

The details of share premium presented in the consolidated statements of financial position and
consolidated statements of changes in equity as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Common shares 67,618,617
Preferred shares 535,266,800
602,885,517

(¢} Retained earnings

The portion of retained earnings corresponding to the undistributed share in results of associated
companies amounted to P502.2 million as at December 31, 2018 (2017 - P559.3 million; 2016 - P545.5
million)}. These amounts are not available for distribution as dividends until declared by the associates
and joint venture (Note 6). Retained earnings are further restricted to the extent of P2.7 million
representing the cost of shares held in treasury as at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

(d) Other reserves

Other reserves pertain to items of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss. These include actuarial gain on defined benefit plan, net of tax, amounting to Po.7 million as at
December 31, 2018 (2017 - Po.2 million; 2016 - Po.4 million} and share in actuarial gain of an associate
and a joint venture amounting to Po.3 million as at December 31, 2018 (2017 - Po.1 million; 2016 -
Po.3 million) (Note 6).

(e) Track record of registration of securities

In accordance with SRC Rule 68, as Amended (2011), Annex 68-D, below is a summary of the Parent
Company's track record of registration of securities.

Number of Number of holders of securities
shares Issue/ as at December 31
registered offer price Date of approval 2018 2017 20186
Common 293,828,900 R1  September 11, 1989 1,242 1,243 1,250
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Note 10 - Related party disclosures

In the normal course of business, the Group transacts with companies which are considered related
parties under PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures. The significant related party transactions and

outstanding balances as at and for the year ended December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017
Cutstanding Outstanding
Trangaction receivable Transaction receivable
Related party amount (payable) amount (payable) Terms and conditions
Parent company
KLL (d) - - 230,757 230,757 Non-interest-bearing, unsecured,
30-to-60 days, collectible in cash
Shareholder
Molten Pte Ltd (e) 148,195 B 447,726 447 7286 Non-interest-bearing, Lnsecured,
30-t0-60 days, colieckble in cash
Associates
OKER (a) 113,918 70,332,347 138,903 70,216,429 Mon-interest-bearing, unsecured,
collectibie in cash upon demand
OVl {a} 115,239 2,196,650 132,406 2,081,411 Non-interest-bearing, unsecured,
collectibie in cash upon demand
ORDC (a) 140,466 721,650 176,428 581,184 Non-interest-bearing, unsecured,
collectibie in cash upon demand
BHSI

Operating advances (a) 434,540G 401,961 1,697,830 201,820 Non-interest-bearing, unsecured,
30-to-6C days, coliectible in cash

Return of investment (c) 265,554 24 569,604 39,376,778 24,835,158 Mon-interest-bearing, unsecured,
collectibie in cash upon demand

Joint ventuse
SMKL

Operating advances (a) 11,951,386 1,376,642 14,253,847 1,492,650 Non-interest-bearing, unsecured,
30-to-60 days, coflectible in cash

Management fee (b} 6,894,284 . 3,873,248 -

Franchise fee (b) 2,757,714 - 1,549,208 -

Entity under common contzol
Wiseland lavestment Myanmay, Ltd. (f) - 242 457 242 457 242 457 Non-interest-bearing, unsecured,
30-t0-60 days, collectible in cash
99,841,251 100,331,692
Associates
OKEP (c) - (40,298,507} . (490,208,507)  NMNon-interest-bearing, unsecured,
payable on demand
BHSI {c} - 83,701,493 - Non-interast-bearing, unsecured,
payable on demand
Enlities under common conirol
SMPM (h}

Management fee 24,799,889 {17,690,695) 12,156,273 (7,403,071)  Non-interest-bearing, unsecured,
30-to-60 days, payable in cash
upon demang

KLIL (g)

Operating advances 1,802 - 269,183 - Non-interest-bearing, unsecured,
30-t0-60 days, payable in cash
upan demand

Keppel Land (Regional
Investrnents) Ple. Lid. {g)

Operating advances 615,181 - - - Non-interest-bearing, unsecured,
30-to-60 days, payable in cash
upon demand

Keppel Land Enternalional
(Management) Pte. Lid. {g)

Operating advances 248,337 - - - Non-interest-bearing, unsecured,
30-to-80 days, payable in cash
upon demand

(57,989,202} (47,701,678)
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{(a) The Group made operating advances for expenses incurred by associates and joint venture in 2018
and 2017. These operating advances represent expenses incurred in the normal operations paid on
behalf of the Group's associates and joint venture. These are recharged at cost.

(b) The Group provides management, advisory and consultancy services to SMKL, The amount of
management fee charged by the Group to SMKL amounted to P6.9 million in 2018
(2017 and 2016 - P3.g million), Franchise fee charged amounted to P2.8 million in 2018
(2017 - P1.5 million; 2016 - P1.6 million). Management fee is charged at 2.5% of annual net
revenues of SMKL while franchise fee is charged at 1.0% of net revenues of SMKL. There were no
outstanding receivables from SMKL for management and franchise fees as at December 31, 2018
and 2017,

(¢) On December 22, 2011, the BOD of BHSI approved BHSI's plan to decrease its authorized share
capital. In relation to this and pending the SEC’s approval of such plan, BHSI made partial
advance returns of the investments to its shareholders which include BHI and OKEP of
P59.7 million and P40,3 million, respectively, The P40,3 million was received by the Group in
behalf of OKEP. In 2014, the Group received additional advances of P24.0 million from BHSI,
thereby increasing the Group’s liabilities to BHSI to P83.7 million as at December 31, 2016.

On September 15, 2017, the SEC approved the amendments of BHSI's Articles of Incorporation and
By-laws which include the decrease in its authorized, and issued and outstanding share capital.
These were approved by SEC on September 15, 2017, thereby decreasing BHSI's share capital. Asa
result, the Group’s investment in BHSI decreased by P123,078,260 (Note 6). The settlement of
return of investment is consisted of offsetting of prior year advances from BHSI amounting to
P83.7 million, as discussed above, and cash proceeds of P14.5 million resulting to unpaid balance
amounting to P24.8 million presented as due from related parties in the statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2017.

The offsetting of prior year advances to return of investment is presented as non-cash transaction
in the statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2017

The Group collected Po.3 million from BHSI in 2018, thereby decreasing the outstanding balance
to P24.6 million as at December 31, 2018.

(d) In 2017, the Group charged KLL, its immediate parent company, for the amount paid on behalf of
KLL for legal fees amounting to Po.2 million. This was fully collected in 2018,

(e) In 2017, the Group charged Molten Pte Ltd (MPL), a shareholder, for the amount paid on behalf of
MPL for taxes amounting to Po.4 million related to the transfer of the Parent Company’s shares
from a retired management personnel to MPL. During the year, the Group charged MPL for
professional fees amounting to Po.1 million related to the transfer of the Group’s shares from a
retired management personnel to MPL. These were fully collected in 2018,

(f) In 2017, the Group charged Wiseland Investment Myanmar Ltd (WIML), an entity under common
control, an amount representing the employee benefits for the period in service to WIML prior to
the transfer of a management personnel to the Group during the year. This receivable is to be
collected within 30 to 60 days from the reporting period.
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(g) Keppel Land International Limited (KLIL), Keppel Land (Regional Investments), Pte. Ltd., and
Keppel Land International (Management), Pte. Ltd., entities under common control, provide
support services to the Group. Operating advances for the expenses incurred by the Group from
these entities amounted to Po.g million for the year ended December 31, 2018 (2017 - P0.3

million). These are recharged at cost.

(h) Straits Mansfield Property Marketing Pte Ltd (SMPM), an entity under common control, provides
consultancy, advisory and support services to the Group and SMKIL. Consultancy fees charged by
SMPM, which is based on the time spent by SMPM personnel in rendering services to the Group,
amounted to P24.8 million in 2018, (2017 - P12.2 million; 2016 - P12.3 million). Outstanding
payahles to SMPM amounted to P17.7 million as at December 31, 2018 (2017 - P7.4 million).

(i) Transactions and balances related to key management personnel of the Group as at and for the

years ended December 31 are as follows:

Notes 2018 2017 2016

Salaries and other shoni-term employee benefits 18,036,919 19,615,657 13,045,415
Bonuses and allowances 11 6,398,325 8,724,235 3,503,841
Refirement benefits 15 437,805 312,697 163,176
24,873,049 28652489 16,702,432

In 2016, the Group sold one of its fully depreciated vehicles to its management personnel for a
consideration amounting to Po.1 million. The resulting gain is presented as “Gain on sale of
equipment” in “Other income (expense), net” in the consolidated statement of total comprehensive

income (Note 12), This has been fully collected in 2016.

There were neither stock options nor other long-term benefits given to key management personnel as
at and for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, There were no outstanding balances with key

management personnel as at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Details of related party transactions and balances eliminated during consolidation are as follows:

2018 2017
Transaction  Outstanding Transaction  Qutstanding
Subsidiary amount balance amount balance Terms and conditions
Due from subsidiaries
BHI (a) 113,851 284,520 130,069 170,669  Non-interesi-bearing, unsecured,
coliectible in cash upon demand
CSRI (a) 98,939 306,351 178,480 207,412  Non-interest-bearing, unsecured,
collectible in cash upon demand
590,871 378,081
Bue to a subsidiary
BHI (c) - 58,701,493 - 59,701,493  Non-interest-bearing, unsecured,

payable on demand
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Note 11 - General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Notes 2018 2017 2016
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 30,421,538 32,498,979 20,803,678
Management consultancy fee 10 24,799,889 12,155,273 12,288,851
Professional fees 5,154,626 3,025,992 2,299,507
Transportation and travel 4,648,577 3,115,296 3,510,191
Rental 16 2,928,667 2,753,956 2,123,601
Insurance 967,499 402,491 522,409
Utilities 776,822 538,988 487 577
Membership and dues 687,722 620,927 602,160
Retirement benefits 15 521,220 328,438 145,914
Staff recreation and others 478,532 210,863 438,941
Repairs and maintenance 386,248 181,590 336,273
Postage, printing and advertising 370,543 352,499 464,884
Depreciation 7 351,105 317,416 134,213
Taxes and licenses 233,048 1,303,739 228,619
Supplies 155,216 188,066 101,492
Bank and other charges 75,275 50,179 75,756
Others 1,278,890 771,074 632,246

74,235,415 58,815,764 44,996,312

Other expenses pertain to various expenses such as storage costs, photocopy charges, notarial fee and
out-of-pocket expenses for professional services.

Note 12 - Other income {(expense}, net

Other income {expense), net for the years ended December 31 consist of:

Notes 2018 2017 2018
Gain on reversal of liabilities 8 162,849 446,198 1,279,245
Foreign exchange josses, net 18.1a 75,859 33,329 (68,667)
Gain on sale of equipment 10 - 140,000 100,000
Provision for doubtful accounts 3 - {2,666,664) -
Others - 156,002

238,708 {1,891,135) 1,310,578

Note 13 - Income taxes

The details of the income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017 2016

Current 1,510,322 1,006,324 843,769
Deferred : (538,733) {1,499,731) (181,406)

971,689 {494,407) 662,363
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The reconciliation between the statutory income tax and the effective income tax is as follows:

2018 2017 2016
Statutory income tax benefit {35,167,583) (11,503,004) (8,853,674)
Add {deduct) tax effects of:
Change in unrecognized deferred taxes
on NOLCO and MCIT 16,886,764 15,202,741 11,506,577
Non-deductible expenses 2,874,075 543,669 710,822
Income subjected to final tax (716,0186) (501,547) (278,834)
Non-taxable income {40,577) (1 13,334) (396,257)
Share in results of associated companies 17,124,926 {4,122,932) (2,026,271
Effective income tax expense (benefit) 971,589 (494 407) 662,363

(a) Current tax

The details of the current tax expense for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017 2016

Finat tax 1,369,932 919,375 762,705
Minimum Corporate income Tax (MCIT) 140,390 85,049 81,064
1,510,322 1,005,324 843,769

(b} Deferred income tax

The components of deferred income tax asset (liabilities), net as at December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017
Deferred income tax assets
Accrued expenses 1,901,985 1,500,000
Deferred income tax liabilities
Retirement henefit asset (71,427) (17 ,847)
Unrealized foreign exchange gain, net - {374)
(71,427) {18,021)

1,830,658 1,481,979

Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) as at December 31 are expected to be realized (settled) as
follows:

2018 2017
Deferred income tax assets:
Expected to he realized within 12 months 1,901,985 1,500,000
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Expected to be settled within 12 months . (374)
Expected to be settled after 12 months {71,427) (17.847)
{71,427) {18,021)

1,830,658 1,481,979
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Movements in net deferred income tax assets for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017
At January 1 1,481,979 {69,409)
Credited to profit or loss 538,733 1,499,731
Credited to other comprehensive income (190,154) 51,657
At December 31 1,830,558 1,481,979

Deferred income tax assets for net operating loss carry-over (NOLCO) and excess MCIT were not
recognized since Management believes that future taxable profit will not be available against which
these carry-forward benefits can be applied. Details of unrecognized deferred income tax assets as at

December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017
NOLCO 144,328,937 120,308,202
Tax rate 30% 30%
43,298,681 36,092,761
MCIT 307,403 241,060
43,606,084 36,333,821
The movements in NOLCO and MCIT as at December 31 are as follows:
2018 2017
NOLCO
At January 1 120,309,202 89,753,759
Additions 55,854,581 50,389,307
Expirations {31,834,846) (19,833,864)
At December 31 144,328,937 120,309,202
MCIT
At January 1 241,060 258,948
Additions 140,380 85,849
Expirations (74,047) {103,837}
At December 31 307,403 241,080

Details of NOLCO at December 31, which could be carried over as deduction from taxable income for
three consecutive years following the year of incurrence, follow:

Year incurred Year of Expiry 2018 2017
2015 2018 - 31,834,846
2016 2019 38,085,049 38,085,049
2017 2020 50,389,307 50,389,307
2018 2021 55 854,581

144,328,937 120,309,202
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The Group is subject to MCIT equivalent to 2% of gross income, as defined in the tax regulations, The
details of the Group’s excess MCIT over normal income tax are as follows:

Year incurred Year of Expiry 2018 2017
2015 2018 - 74,047
2016 2019 81,064 81,064
2017 2020 85,949 85,949
2018 2021 140,390 -

307,403 241,060

Note 14 - Earnings (loss) per share

Earnings (loss) per share for the years ended December 31 was determined as follows:

2018 2017 2016
Net loss (118,196,865) (37,848,940) (30,174,609)
Divided by: Weighted average number of common
shares issued and outstanding 203 828,900 293,828,900 293828900
Basic/Diluted loss per share {0.40) (06.13) {0.10)

The Group has no potential shares that will have a dilutive effect on loss per share,

The weighted average number of shares outstanding as at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 is
computed as follows:

issued shares 296,629,900
Less: Treasury shares 2,801,000
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 293,828,900

Note 15 - Retirement benefits

The Group has a funded, non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan, administered by BDO
Unibank, Inc.-Trust and Investment Group (Trustee), covering its regular employees. The Group is
under the KPPI Multi-employer Retirement Plan, The Parent Company, together with the companies
under the plan, contributes to the trust fund amounts as may be required as estimated by an
independent actuary, on the basic accepted actuarial principles, to maintain the plan in a sound
condition. The companies also reserve the right, whenever economic conditions may warrant, to
discontinue or suspend its contributions to the trust fund. Further, the Parent Company is not liable to
the plan for other companies’ obligations under the terms and conditions of the multi-employer plan.
In case of termination of the plan, the liability of the companies to make contributions shall cease and
the trust fund shall be allocated pro-rata to the employees.

Republic Act 7641, The New Retirement Law, requires a provision for retirement pay to qualified
private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity. The law does not require
minimum funding of the plan. The latest actuarial valuation date of the Group’s retirement plan is as at
December 31, 2018.




The net retirement benefit asset recognized in the statement of financial position as at December 31 is
determined as follows:

2018 2017

Fair value of plan assets 2,240,514 1,821,792
Present value of defined benefit obligation (2,002,423) (1,762,969)
238,091 58,823

The Group's net retirement benefit asset reflected in the consolidated financial statements represents
the Parent Company’s retirement plan because the impact of BHSI and SMKL's retirement plans are
reflected as part of “Share on actuarial gain (loss) of an associate and a joint venture”,

Changes in the net retirement benefit asset recognized in the consolidated statements of financial
position for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017
At January 1 58,823 420,164
Retirement expense recognized in profit or loss (5621,220) (328,438)
Transfer of employees from an associate (375,670) -
Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income
Changes in demographic assumptions - -
Changes in financial assumptions 265,067 (17,322)
Deviations of experience from assumptions 490 564 (32,287)
Loss on plan assets (121,783) {122,600)
Contributions fo the retirement fund 442,310 139,286
At December 31 238,091 58,823

The components of retirement benefit expense and net interest expense (income) recognized in profit
or loss for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017 2018

Current service cost presented as retirement expense 504,142 350,622 175,733
Net interest expense (income) 17,078 (22,184) {29,819)

521,220 328,438 145,914

The remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31 are
determined as follows:

Note 2018 2017 2016
Remeasurements on defined benefit obligation 755,631 {49,589) (112,048)
Remeasurements on plan assets {121,783) {122,800) (37,941)
Remeasurement gain (loss) 633,848 (172,189) {149,989)
Deferred income tax benefit (expense) 13 (190,154) 51,657 44,997
Remeasurement gain (loss), net of tax 443 694 {120,532) {104,992)

{17) - 53 —



(a) Defined benefit obligation

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for the years ended December 31 are as
follows:

2018 2017
At January 1 1,762,969 1,421,621
Current service cost included in retirement expense 504,142 350,622
tnterest cost included in retirement expense 115,273 75,062
Transfer of employees from an associate 375,670 -
Remeasurements in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial ioss (gain) on obligation resulting from:
Changes in demographic assumptions - -
Changes in financial assumptions {265,067) 17,322
Deviations of experience from assumptions {(490,564) 32,267
Benefits paid from the retirement fund - {133,825)
At December 31 2,002,423 1,762,969

As at December 31, 2018, the average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 21 years,

Shown below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as at December 31:

2018 207
Less than 10 years 1,303,486 -
More than 10 years to 15 years 1,023,143 2,002,619
More than 15 years to 20 years 6,756,334 9,984,370
More than 20 years 36,977,046 4,213,969
46,060,009 16,200,958
(b} Plan assets

The major categories of plan assets as at December 31 are as follows:
2018 2017
Cash 976,265 5,605
Government securities 1,237,213 1,049,359
investment in unit investments in trust funds (UITF) 17,804 761,516
Receivables 11,510 7.572
Trust fee payable {2,278) {2,260)
2,240,514 1,821,792

The funds are administered by a trustee bank under the supervision of the Board of Trustees (BOT) of
the plan which delegates the implementation of the investment policy to the trustee. These funds are
subject to the investment objectives and guidelines established by the trustee and rules and regulations
issued by Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas covering assets under trust and fiduciary agreements. The

trustee is responsible for the investment strategy of the plan.

Investments in government securities and UITF held have quoted prices in active markets. The plan

assets have diverse investments and do not have any concentration risk.
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The asset allocation of the plan is set and reviewed from time to time by the BOT taking into account
the membership profile and liquidity requirements of the plan, This also considers the expected benefit
cash flows to be matched with asset durations.

Changes in the fair value of plan assets for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017
At January 1 1,821,792 1,841,785
interest income presented as net on retirement expense 98,195 97,248
Remeasurements in other comprehensive income:

Loss on plan assets {(121,783) (122,600)
Contributions to the retirement fund 442 310 139,286
Benefits paid from the retirement fund - (133,925)
At December 31 2,240,514 1,821,792

There are no plan assets invested in any entity within the Group as at and for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017. The Group's transactions with the retirement fund for the years are
limited to contributions and benefit payments. The fair value of the plan assets approximates their
carrying amount as at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

The Group’s annual contribution to the fund consists principally of payments which covers the current
service cost for the year and the required funding relative to the guaranteed minimum benefits as
applicable. The Group expects to contribute Po.4 million to the retirement fund in 2019,

There was no plan amendment, curtailment, or settlement for the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017,

Actuarial assumptions

The principal assumptions used in determining the Group’s retirement obligation as at December 31
are shown below:

2018 2017
Discount rate 8.93% 5.39%
Future salary increase rate 5.00% 5.00%

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government
bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, with extrapolated
maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. Future salary
increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the specific country. The mortality rate is
based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific country and is modified accordingly with
estimates of mortality improvements,
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The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each
significant assumption on the retirement obligation as at December 31:

Rates Increase (Decrease)
2018 2017 2018 2017
Discount rate +1.0% +1.0% (40,318) {140,783)
-1.0% -1.0% 51,081 180,511
Salary increase rate +1.0% +1.0% 51,667 172,634
-1.0% -1.0% {(41,310) {138,790)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant, In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions
may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the retirement obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating
the retirement benefit asset recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position,

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change
compared to the prior period.

Note 16 - L.eases

The Group has the following operating lease contracts for years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and
2016:

(a) Office space - The Group entered into an operating lease contract for its office space related to the
transfer of the Group’s office to a temporary address due to the ongoing construction by the lessor
of the Group’s principal office. The lease agreement has expired on February 28, 2019.
Consequently, the Parent Company moved back to its principal office address at The Podium West
Tower, 12 ADB Avenue, Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City with a lease term of three (3) years from
March 2019 to March 2022, Total rent expense charged to operations amounted to P2.4 million in
2018 (2017 - P2,1 million; 2016 - P1.9 million) (Note 11).

As at December 31, 2018, the required advance rentals and deposit amounted to 1.8 million
(2017 - P 1.4 million). These are included under “Prepayments and other current assets” in the
consclidated statements of financial position (Note 4).

(b) Staff house - The Group entered into operating lease contracts for its officers” housing. These
agreements will expire on various dates in 2019, Total rent expense charged to operations
amounted to P2.7 million in 2018 (2017 - P3.5 million; 2016 - P1.2 million). Rent expense for staff
house is presented as part of “Salaries, wages and employee benefits” in the “General and
administrative expenses” (Note 11).

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the required advance rentals and deposit amounted to Po.5
million. These are included under “Prepayments and other current assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position (Note 4).

The future minimum lease payments under the above leases are as follows:

2018 2017

Not later than one year 5757,928 1,019,458
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Note 17 - Segment information

The Group has only one segment as it derives its revenues primarily from management consultancy
services rendered to its associates.

Significant information on the reportable segment is as follows:

2018 2017
Operating assets 1,5631,636,972 1,627,357,787
Operating kabilities 81,108,708 59,285,672
Revenue and income {expense) {43,228,569) 22,363,552
Other income, net 238,708 (1,891,135)
General and administrative expenses 74,235,415 58,815,764
Segment net loss (118,196,865) {37.848,940)

All revenues are from domestic entities incorporated in the Philippines, hence, the Group did not
present geographical information required by PFRS 8, Operating Segments.

There are no revenues derived from a single external customer above 10% of total revenue.

There is no need to present reconciliation sinice the Group's operating assets, operating liabilities,
revenue, cost and expenses and segment net loss pertains to a single operating segment.

Note 18 - Financial risk and capital management

18,1 Financial risk management

The Group's principal financial assets and financial liabilities comprise cash and cash equivalents,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), amounts due to and from
related parties and refundable deposits, The Group has various other financial assets and financial
liabilities such as receivables and payables and other current liabilities, which arise from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are market risk (mainly foreign currency
risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s BOD and management review and agree on the
policies for managing each of these risks as summarized below.

(a) Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign

exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency arises from SG-dollar denominated cash on
hand and consultancy fees due to SMPM.
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The Group’s foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities as at December 31 are as
follow;

2018 2017
SGD UsD SGD UsD
Cash and cash equivalents 500 - 500 1,233
Due to related parties (456,704) - {188,721) -
Net assets (liabilities) (456,204) - (188,221} 1,233
Year-end exchange rate 38.47 - 37.32 50.74
PHP equivalent (17,550,168) - {7,024 408) 62,562

Net foreign exchange gains (losses) for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Note 2018 2017 2016

Unrealized - 1,247 3,120
Realized 75,859 32,082 {71,787)
12 75,859 33,329 (88,667)

The Group manages its foreign currency exposure risk by matching receipts and payments in each
individual currency. Foreign currency is converted into relevant domestic currency as and when the
management deems necessary,

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the Philippine Peso
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s income before tax. There is no
impact on the Group’s equily other than those already affecting the net income.

Currency Change in Effect on income before

variable tax increase {decrease)

December 31, 2018 SGD +3.08% (540,545)
-3.08% 540,545

December 31, 2017 UsSD +2.01% 1,258
-2.01% (1,258)

SGD +7.67% (538,772)

-7.67% 538,772

In 2018 and 2017, the Group used the average change in closing rates for the year in determining the
reasonable possible change in foreign exchange rates,

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises when the counterparty to a financial asset of the Group is unable to fuifill its
obligation at the time the obligation becomes due. Credit risk arises from the Group’s financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, receivables, amounts due from related parties and
refundable deposits. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the carrying values of the Group’s financial
instruments represent maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date,

There were no amounts that are offset in accordance with the entities in PAS 32, Financial

Instruments: Presentation. There were no amounts subject to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreement as at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
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The Group transacts mostly with related parties, thus, there is no requirement for collateral. There are
no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group. The Group's due from related parties are
approximately ninety-nine percent {gg%} of total receivables as at December 31, 2018 and 2017,

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 60

days of when they fall due.

The credit quality per class of financial assets at amortized cost is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired Past due but

High grade Low grade Total  not Impaired Impaired Total

December 31, 2018
Cash and cash equivalents* 137,966,967 - 137,966,967 - - 137,966,967
Receivables 1,394,693 - 1,394,693 - 2,666,664 4,061,357
Due from refated parties 99,841,251 - 99,841,251 - - 99,841,251
Refundable deposits 72,300 - 72,300 - - 72,300
239,217,008 - 239,217,008 - 2,666,664 241,883,672

December 31, 2017
Cash and cash equivalents* 178,596,541 - 178,596,541 - - 178,596,541
Receivables 1,014,492 - 1,014,492 - 2,666,664 3,681,156
Due from related parties 100,331,592 - 100,331,502 - - 100,331,592
Refundable deposits 72,300 - 72,300 - - 72,300
279,850,632 - 279,850,632 - 2,666,664 282,517,286

*Cash and cash equivalents exclude cash on hand.

The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit exposure with financial institutions. The Group
also maintains its deposits with reputable banks and financial institutions. For banks and financial
institutions, only independently rated parties with good, if not the highest credit ratings, are accepted
such as universal and commercial banks as defined by the Philippine Banking System. All cash in

banks of the Group are with universal banks as at December 31, 2018 and 2017,

The Group’s receivable amounting to P2.7 million as at December 31, 2018 is determined to be

impaired and was provided with allowance for doubtful accounts in 2017 (Note 3).

(i} Cashin bank

The Group has maintained business relationships with an accredited universal bank that has high

credit standing in the financial services industry,

The remaining cash in the consolidated statement of financial position pertains to cash on hand which

is not subject to credit risk,

{ii) Recetvables

Recetvables from related parties

Credit exposure of the Group on receivables from related parties is considered to be low as these parties
have no history of default and have a strong credit history. Additionally, credit risk is minimized since
the related parties are paying on normal credit terms based on contracts.

The maximum credit risk exposure is equal to the carrying amount as at December 31, 2018 and 2017.
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Recetvables from third parties

The credit quality of receivables that are neither past due nor impaired and impaired can be assessed by
reference to historical information about counterparty default rates.

As at December 31, 2018, the Group's receivable amounting to P2.7 million is determined to be
impaired and was provided with allowance for doubtful accounts in 2017 (Note 3).

None of the financial assets that are fully performing has been renegotiated in the last year.
fc) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of cash and short-term deposits. The Group also monitors its risk to shortage of funds through
monthly evaluation of the projected and actual cash flow information.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities
based on contractual undiscounted payments:

More than
L ess than 3 months More than
On demand 3 months to 1 year one year Total
December 31, 2018
Accounts payable and
other current liabilities* 553,981 12,770,746 “ - 13,324,727
Due to related parties 52,234,206 5,754,096 - - 57,989,202
52,788 187 18,525,742 - - 71,313,929
December 31, 2017
Accounts payable and
other current liabilities* 553,981 8,187,695 - - 8,741,678
Due to related parties 43,473,046 4228532 - - 47,701,578
44 027 027 12,416,227 - - 56,443,254

* Accounts payable and other current liabilities exclude taxes payable.
18,2 Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit
rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value. The
Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors capital using percentage of debt to equity, which is total liabilities divided by total
equity net of treasury shares. The Group’s policy is to maintain the percentage of debt to equity ratio
below 100%. The Group includes, within total debt, accounts payable and other current labilities and
amounts due to related parties.

The Group’s objective is to ensure that there are no known events that may trigger direct or contingent
financial obligation that is material to the Group, including default or acceleration of an obligation,
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There are no changes in the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital from the
previous period.

The percentages of debt to equity as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017
Liabilities 81,106,708 59,285,572
Equity 1,450,630,264  1,568,072,215
Percentage of debt to equity 5.58% 3.78%

As part of the reforms of the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) to expand capital market and improve
transparency among listed firms, the PSE requires listed entities to maintain a minimum of ten percent
(10%) of their issued and outstanding shares, exclusive of any treasury shares, held by the public, The
Group has fully complied with this requirement,

18.3  Fair value estimation

Due to the short-term nature of the Group’s financial instruments, their fair values approximate their
carrying amounts as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, except for financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The financial assets pertaining to investment in preferred equity shares and unquoted club shares are
valued at FVOCIL. The management has assessed that the cost less any impairment if any, is the best
estimate for fair value because these do not have a quoted market price in an active market and fair
value cannot be measured reliably.

Fair value hierarchy

During the reporting period ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, there were no transfers between Level
1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurement,

Note 19 - Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
related notes. The estimates, assumptions, and judgments used in the financial statements are based
unpon management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the financial
statements, These are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Actual results could differ from such estimates.

The estimates, assumptions, and judgments that may have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities within the next financial year are discussed
below,
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19.1  Critical judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

(a) Assessment of control, joint control and significant influence

The Group has determined that it has no control over its investments in associates as it has no power
over these investees or it is not exposed or does not have rights to variable returns from its involvement
with these investees and it does not have the ability to effect the amount of these variable returns,
However, the Group determined that it has significant influence over these investments, thus these
investments are classified as associates and is continuously accounted for by the Group using the equity
method in its consolidated financial statements. Moreover, the Group is a part owner of an investment
in a joint venture where the Group has determined that it does not have sole control over the investee
and the ownership is shared with the other owner. The Group and the other owner have joint control
and rights over the net assets of the investment.

The Group has (after considering the structure and form of the arrangement, the terms agreed by the
parties in the contractual arrangement and the Group's rights and obligations arising from the
arrangement) classified its interest as joint ventures, thus the Group account for its investment in
associates and joint venture using the equity method.

The carrying value of investment in associates and joint venture as at December 31, 2018 amounted to
P1,185.8 million (2017 - P1,242.6 million) (Note 6).

(b) Classification and fair value measurement of financial assets not quoted in an active market

The Group has assessed the business models for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets to determine the appropriate classification for each financial
asset under PFRS o, Financial Instruments.

The AFS investments in preferred shares within the Group are not held for trading, thus, the Group
elected to classify these investments under “Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income” with gains and losses remaining in the other comprehensive income, i.e. without recycling to
profit or loss upon derecognition (Note 5). However, dividends from investments should be recognized
in profit or Joss when the right to receive payment is probable and can be measured reliably,

The Group has assessed that cost is an appropriate estimate of fair value. Cost less impairment, if any,
is the best estimate of fair value as these are unquoted preferred shares of related parties and there is
insufficient recent information available to determine fair value.

The Group has assessed that indicators below, at investees point of view, are not existent, thus,
concluded that cost less impairment, if any, is the best estimate of fair value.

e asignificant change in the performance of the investee compared with budgets, plans or milestones

e changes in expectation that the investee's technical product milestones will be achieved

e asignificant change in the market for the investee's equity or its products or potential products;
and

e asignificant change in the global economy or the economic environment in which the investee
operates.
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The valuation of the financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income is categorized as
Level 3 measurement as it utilized adjusted inputs for valuation that were, for the major part,
unobservable as at the date of valuation. The main inputs used by the Group are net asset values of the
investees. These investees are dormant companies with cash, receivables and investments in other
entities on their statements of financial position.

(¢} Assessment of impairment of investment in associates and joint venture

The Group assesses impairment on its investments in associates and joint venture whenever events or
changes in circumstances indieate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable, The
Group recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, This requires the Group to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the
consolidated financial statements., Future events could cause the Group to conclude that these assets
are impaired. Any resulting additional impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on the
Group'’s financial condition and results of operations.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group did not recognize any impairment loss on its investment
in associates and joint ventures since there are no impairment indicators identified in 2018 and 2017.
The carrying value of investments in associates and joint venture as at December 31, 2018 amounted to
P1,185.8 million (2017 - P1,242.6 million) (Note 6).

(d) Impairment of receivables and due from related parties

The allowance for doubtful accounts related to its trade receivables and due from related parties are
based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses estimates in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in Note 20.6.

Prior to the adoption of PFRS 9, the Group maintains allowance for doubtful accounts on its receivables
at a level adequate to provide for any potential uncollectible receivables. The level of this allowance is
regularly evaluated by the Group. The Group assesses whether objective impairment exists for the
receivable by considering the financial condition and credit history of the counterparty. Moreover, the
Group also considers its historical loss experience in assessing collective impairment of receivables.
The Group reviews the status of the receivables and identifies amounts that are to be provided with
allowance on a continuous basis. The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would
differ if the Group made different judgments or utilized different estimates, An increase in the Group’s
allowance for doubtful accounts on receivables would increase the Group’s recorded expenses and
decrease current assets.

Receivables amounted to P1.4 million as at December 31, 2018 (2017 - P1.0 million). Due from related
parties amounted to P99.8 million as at December 31, 2018 (2017 - P100.3 million). Allowance for
impairment loss provided for the Group’s receivable from a third party amounted to P2.7 million as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017 (Notes 3 and 10).

(e} Recognition of deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses and credits to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the tax losses and credits can be utilized,
Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred income tax assets
that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.
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As at December 31, 2018, recognized deferred income tax assets amounted to P1.8 million
(2017 - P1.5 million). The amount of unrecognized deferred income tax assets amounted to P43.6
million as of December 31, 2018 (2017 - P36.3 million) (Note 13).

(f} Recoverability of prepaid income taxes and input VAT

The Group assesses impairment on prepaid income taxes and input VAT whenever events or changes in
circumstance indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The Group
recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. Based on management’s assessment, the prepaid income taxes and input VAT will be fully
utilized in the future by applying it to applicable taxes.

Note 20 - Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below, These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise
stated,

20.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated finanecial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (“PFRS™). The term PFRS in general includes all applicable PFRS,
Philippine Accounting Standards (“PAS”), and interpretations of the Philippine Interpretations
Committee (“PIC™), Standing Interpretations Committee (“SIC”) and International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) which have been approved by the Financial Reporting Standards
Council (“FRSC”) and adopted by the SEC.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for the financial assets at fair value through OCI and retirement benefit asset, recognized as the
net of the fair value of plan assets and the present value of defined benefit obligation.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are
disclosed in Note 19,

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(@) Amendments and improvements to existing standards and interpretations adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards for the first time for their annual reporting period
commencing January 1, 2018:

¢ PFRS 9, Financial Instruments. The Group has adopted PFRS g with a date of transition of
Jannary 1, 2018, which resulted in changes in accounting policies. The adoption of PFRS g has not
resulted to any adjustments to the amounts previously recognized in the financial statements. The
Group did not early adopt PFRS g in previous periods. The Group adopted the standard using the
modified retrospective approach which means that the cumulative impact of the adoption will be
recognized in retained earnings as of January 1, 2018 and that comparatives will not be restated.
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The adoption of PFRS g has resulted in changes in our accounting policies for recognition,
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities and impairment of
financial assets,

Set out below are disclosures relating to the impact of the adoption of PFRS . Further details of
the specific PFRS g accounting policies applied in the current period (as well as the previous PAS
39 accounting policies applied in the comparative period) are described in more detail in

Note 20.3.

(i} Classification and measurement

On January 1, 2018, the Group’s management has assessed which business models apply to the
financial assets held by the Group and has classified its financial instruments into the appropriate
PFRS g categories (Note 19.1).

The closing balances as at December 31, 2017 show loans and receivables under amortized cost.
These reclassifications have no impact on the measurement categories. The financial assets at
amortized cost include cash and cash equivalents (Note 2), receivables (Note 3), due from related
parties (Note 10) and refundable deposits in the statement of financial position.

There were no changes to the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.
(ii} Impairment of financial assets

The Group’s trade receivables and due from related parties are subject to PFRS 9's new expected
credit loss model. The Group is required to revise its impairment methodology under PFRS g for
each of these classes of assets,

While cash in banks are also subject to the impairment requirements of PFRS g, there was no
impairment loss to be recognized.

The Group applies the PFRS g simplified approach in measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and due from related parties. The
caleulation of impairment based on simplified approach has resulted in immaterial loss allowance.

» PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, deals with revenue recognition and establishes
principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the nature,
amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts with
customers. Revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of a good or service and, thus
has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service. Under the new
standard, the notion of control replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards.
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The standard replaces PAS 18, Revenue, and PAS 11, Construction Contracts, and related
interpretations, A five-step process must be applied before revenue can be recognized which
include: (i) identification of contracts with customers; (ii) identification of the separate
performance obligation; (iii) determination of the transaction price of the contract; (iv) allocation
of the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations; and (v) recognition of
revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied. Revenue may also be recognized earlier than
under current standards if the consideration varies for any reasons (such as for incentives, rebates,
performance fees, royalties, success of an outcome, etc.) - minimum amounts must be recognized if
these are not at significant risk of reversal. Further, the point at which revenue is able to be
recognized may shift: some revenue which is currently recognized at a point in time at the end of a
contract may have to be recognized over the contract term and vice versa. The Group has adopted
the new standard effective January 1, 2018. The adoption resulted in changes in the Group’s
revenue recognition policy but did not have material impact in the consolidated financial
statements, The Group adopted the standard using the modified retrospective approach which
means that the camulative impact of the adoption will be recognized in retained earnings as of
January 1, 2018 and that comparatives will not be restated.

Amendments to PFRS 15 comprise clarifications of the guidance on identifying performance
obligations, accounting for licenses of intellectual property and the principal versus agent
assessment {gross versus net revenue presentation permitted), New and amended illustrative
examples have been added for each of these areas of guidance. It also included additional
expedients related to transition to the new revenue standard. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early application permitted.

The amendments did not change the core principles of PFRS 15 however, they clarified some of the
more complex aspects of the standard. Accordingly, PFRS 15 and its amendments resulted in
changes in the Group’s revenue recognition policy but did not have material impact in the
consolidated financial statements.

(b) New standards, amendments to existing standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments, and interpretations to existing standards are effective for
annual periods after January 1, 2018, and have not been early adopted nor applied by the Group in
preparing these consolidated financial statements. None of these standards are expected to have
significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group, while the most relevant one is
set out below:

PFERS 16, Leases (effective January 1, 2019). The standard now requires lessees to recognize a lease
liability reflecting future lease payments and a ‘right-of-use asset’ for virtually all lease contracts.
The International Accounting Standards Board (JASB) has included an optional exemption for
certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets; however, this exemption can only be
applied by lessees. For lessors, the accounting stays almost the same. However, as the IASB has
updated the guidance on the definition of a lease (as well as the guidance on the combination and
separation of contracts), lessors will also be affected by the new standard. At the very least, the new
accounting model for lessees is expected to impact negotiations between lessors and lessees. Under
PFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration, Earlier application is permitted,
but only in conjunction with PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. In order to
facilitate transition, entities can choose a ‘simplified approach’ that includes certain reliefs related
to the measurement of the right-of-use asset and the lease lability, rather than full retrospective
application; furthermore, the ‘simplified approach’ does not require a restatement of comparatives,
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In addition, as a practical expedient entities are not required to reassess whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease at the date of initial application (that is, such contracts are “grandfathered”).

The Group wili continue to assess the impact of PFRS 16 closer to the date of mandatory adoption
{Group as lessor) but has initially assessed a possible recognition of the right-of-use asset under
this standard pertaining to its non-cancellable operating lease commitments of P5.8 million, The
adoption of this standard is not expected to have a significant impact in the Group’s financial
statements as the remaining lease periods of existing lease agreements are less than twelve months
(Note 16).

20.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries
as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2018. Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date of acquisition or incorporation, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent Company, using consistent
accounting policies, When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies in line with the Parent Company's accounting policies,

Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity
holders of the Parent Company since the subsidiaries are wholly-owned by the Parent Company.

All intra-group balances, transactions and unrealized gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full.

Assessment of control

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

¢ Power over the investee
» Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from involvement with the investee; and
¢ The ability to use power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls the investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the related assets {including goodwill),

liabilities, non-contrelling interest and other components of equity while any resultant gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss. Any investment retained is recognized at fair value,
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20.3 Finanecial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity, The Group recognizes a financial instrument in the
statement of financial position, when, and only when, it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets
(a) Classification

From January 1, 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and
amortized cost. The Group did not hold financial assets under the category financial assets at FVPL as
at December 31, 2018,

(i) Amortized cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/losses
together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item
in the statement of total comprehensive income.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows, The Group's financial assets measured at amortized cost comprise
cash and cash equivalents (Note 20.5), receivables (Note 20.6), due from related parties (Note 20.6)
and refundable deposits in the statement of financial position.

(ii) Fair value through other comprehensive income

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCIL. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The Group’s financial assets measured at
FVOCI represent unquoted preferred shares of related parties and quoted investments in club shares.
These are classified in the statement of financial position (Note 5).

{h) Recognition and measurement
(i) Initial recognition and measurement
The measurement at initial recognition did not change on adoption of PFRS 9. See description below,

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

(32) | - 68 -



(i) Subseguent measurement

Loans and receivables and other financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

Equity investments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the Group’s management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Group’s policy is to designate
equity investments as FVOCI when those investments are held for purposes other than to generate
investment returns. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognized in OCI and
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) are not reported separately from other changes in fair value. Dividends,
when representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

(¢) Impairment

From January 1, 2018, for trade receivables and due from related parties, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by PFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized
from initial recognition of the trade receivables. Impairment testing of receivables and due from
related parties is described in Note 20.6.

Equity investments

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. For equity investiments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of security below its cost is also evidence that the assets are
impaired.

If any such evidence exists the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in
profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized
in the profit or loss on equity instruments are not reversed through profit or loss.

(d) Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership.

Financial liabilities

{a) Classification

The classification and measurement of financial liabilities under PFRS g remains the same as in PAS 39
except where an entity has chosen to measure a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.
For such liabilities, changes in fair value related to changes in own credit risk are presented separately

in other comprehensive income., The Group did not measure its financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss as at December 31, 2018.
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The Group classities its financial liabilities in the following categories: financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (including financial liabilities held for trading and those that designated at fair
value); and other financial liabilities, The Group’s financial liabilities are limited to other financial
labilities at amortized cost.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost pertains to issued financial instruments that are not classified as
at fair value through profit or loss and contain contract obligations to deliver cash or another financial
asset to the holder or to settle the obligation other than the exchange of a fixed amount of cash. These
are included in current liabilities, except for maturities greater than twelve (12) months after the
reporting period which are classified as non-current liabilities.

The Group’s trade and other payables (excluding payable to government agencies) (Note 20.12), and
due to related parties are classified under other financial liabilities at amortized cost.

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value
plus transaction costs. Financial liabilities are derecognized when extinguished, i.e., when the
obligation is discharged or is cancelled, expires, or paid.

{c} Measurement

Other financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method,

(d}) Offsetting

Financial assets and Habilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the company or the
counterparty. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, there were no offsetting of financial assets and
liabilities.

Accounting policies applied until December 31, 2017

(@) Classification and measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets and Habilities according to the categories described below, The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration
given (in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability). The initial measurement of financial
instruments, except for those designated at fair value through profit and loss (FVPL), includes
transaction costs,
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Financial assets

Financial assets are classified in four categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL), loans and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments and available-for-sale (AFS)
financial assets. As at December 31, 2017, the Group only holds financial assets classified as loans and
receivable and available for sale.

(i} Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, They are not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-
term resale and are not designated as AFS financial assets or financial assets at FVPL.

Loans and receivables are carried at cost or amortized cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position, Amortization is determined using the effective interest rate method. Loans and receivables
are included in current assets if maturity is within twelve months from the reporting date, Otherwise,
these are classified as non-current assets.

This accounting policy relates to the Group’s “Cash and cash equivalents”, “Receivables”, “Due from
related parties” and “Refundable deposits”.

(i) AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in
any other categories. Subsequent to initial recognition, AFS financial assets are carried at fair value in
the consolidated statement of financial position. Changes in the fair value of such assets are reported
in OCT until the investment is derecognized or the investment is determined to be impaired. Assets
under this category are classified as current assets if maturity is within twelve months from the end of
the reporting date and as non-current assets if maturity date is more than a year from the end of the
reporting date.

When the fair value of AFS financial assets cannot be measured reliably because of lack of reliable
estimates of future cash flows and discount rates necessary to calculate the fair value of unquoted
equily instruments, these investments are carried at cost, less any allowance for impairment loss.
Classified under this category are the Group’s investments in club shares and redeemable preferred
shares carried at cost.

{a) Day 1 profit

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other observable
current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference between the transaction
price and fair value (a “Day 1” profit) in profit or loss. In cases where no observable data is used, the
difference between the transaction price and model values is recognized in profit or loss when the
inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Group
determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1” profit amount.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial liabilities at FVPL and other financial
liabilities. As at December 31, 2017, the Group’s financial liabilities are classified as other financial
liabilities,
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Other financial liabilities pertains to financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading or not designated
at FVPL upon the inception of the liability. These include liabilities arising from operations or loans
and borrowings.

The financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently carried at amortized
cost, taking into account the impact of applying the effective interest rate method of amortization (or
accretion) for any related premium, discount and any directly attributable transaction costs.

This accounting policy applies to the Group’s “Accounts payable and other current liabilities”, “Due to
related parties” and other obligations that meet the above definition (other than Habilities covered by
other accounting standards) (Notes 20.12, 20.21).

{b) Recognition

Financial instruments are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace are recognized on the trade date.

(¢} Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired.

(i) Assets carried at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivable carried at amortized cost
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition), The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced
through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in profit or loss.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases, and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortized cost at the reversal date, Any subsequent reversal of impairment loss is recognized in profit
or loss,
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{(ii) AFS financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

The Group recognizes impairment losses on AFS equity investments when there has been a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of such investments below its cost or where other objective
evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgment. In determining whether the decline in value is significant, the Group considers historical
volatility of share price (i.e,, the higher the historical volatility, the greater the decline in fair value
before it is likely to be regarded as significant) and the period of time over which the share price has
been depressed (i.e., a sudden decline is less significant than a sustained fall of the same magnitude
over a longer period).

(d} Derecognition
Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognized when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset or the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Financial Habilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelied or
has expired. Where an existing financial lability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

{e) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the

recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle
the liahility simultaneously.
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20.4 Determination of fair value of financial and non-financial assets

Fair value is the estimated price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or lability,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

(a) Financial assets and liabilities

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the end of the reporting peried is
based on their quoted market price or dealer price quotations, without any deduction for transaction
costs. When current market prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides
evidence of the current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic
circumstances since the time of the transaction. For all other financial instruments not listed in an
active market, the fair value is determined by using appropriate valuation techniques, Valuation
techniques include net present value techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which market
observable prices exist, option pricing models, and other relevant vatuation models.

(b) Non-financial assets

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are
not based on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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The Group’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, and for non-
recurring fair value measurement. At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the
values of assets and labilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant
documents with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

20.5 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less
and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Cash and cash equivalents are recognized
and carried at nominal amounts,

20.6 Receivables and due from related parties

Receivables and due from related parties arising from rendering of services with average credit term of
30 to 60 days are measured at the griginal invoice amount which approximates fair value (as the effect
of discounting is immaterial), less any provision for impairment. Thease are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
provision for impairment,

The Group applies the PFRS ¢ simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all receivables and due from related parties. To measure the
expected credit losses, receivables and due from related parties have been grouped hased on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognized within general and
administrative expenses in the statement of total comprehensive income, When a receivable remains
uncolectible after the Group has exerted all legal remedies, it is written-off against the allowance
account for receivables and due from related parties. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written-off are credited against general and administrative expenses in the statement of total
comprehensive income.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 24 month before
January 1, 2018 and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted 1o reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables and due from related parties. The
Group has identified that the Philippine annual inflation and growth domestic product rates to be the
most relevant factor, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in this
factor,
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Prior to the adoption of PFRS g, a provision for impairment of receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of the receivables and due from related parties. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of
total comprehensive income within Other income {expense), When a receivable remains uncoliectible
after the Group has exerted all legal remedies, it is written-off against the allowance account for
receivables, Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-off are credited against other income
{expense) in the statement of total comprehensive income,

20.7 Prepayments and other current assets
(a) Prepayments

Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid in cash. Prepayments are initially
recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid. Subsequently, these are charged to profit
or loss as they are consumed in the operations or expire with the passage of time.

(b) Prepaid income taxes

Prepaid income taxes represent amounts withheld by the Group’s counterparties in relation to revenue
earned. These amounts are derecognized when applied against the income tax payable.

20.8 Investments in associates and a joint venture

Associates are entities in which the Group has significant influence and which are neither subsidiaries
nor joint ventures of the Group. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are similar to those
necessary to determine control over subsidiaries.

Investments in associates and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method of accounting
from the date from which the entity becomes an associate and a joint venture, The difference between
the cost of the investments and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the investee’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is treated as a “Fair value adjustment” and included in the carrying amount of the
imvestment.
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Under the equity method, the investments in associates and joint venture are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share
of net assets of the associate, less dividends declared and impairment in value. If the Group’s share of
losses of an associate and joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. The interest in an associate and joint venture is the
carrying amount of the investment in the associate and joint venture under the equity method together
with any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the investor's net investment in the
associate and joint venture. After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is
necessary to recognize any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s net investments in the
associates and joint venture, The consolidated statement of comprehensive income reflects the Group’s
share in the results of operations of the associates. This is included in the “Share of results of
associated companies” account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. After the
Group’s interest is reduced to zero, additional losses are provided to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

When there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognizes
its share of any change and discloses this, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

The reporting dates of the associates, joint venture and the Group are identical and the accounting
policies of the associates and joint venture conform to those used by the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances.

Unrealized gains arising from intercompany transactions with its associates and joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate and joint venture. Unrealized losses are
eliminated similarly but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment of the asset
transferred.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associates, the Group measures and recognizes any retaining
investment at its fair value, Any difference between the carrying amount of the associates and joint
venture upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retaining investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

20.9 Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and labilities in consolidated statement of financial position based on
current and non-current classification. An asset is current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period or

Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

*® ® & @

All other assets are classified as non-current,
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A liability is current when;

¢ Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

¢ Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

+ Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or

» There is unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

20.10 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment in value, Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of such property and equipment

when such cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Transportation equipment 2-5
Office equipment 1-4

Furniture and fixtures

The useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
period, residual value and method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic
benefits from items of property and equipment.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumnstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation
and any impairment in value, are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is credited
to or charged against current operations.

20,11  Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell or its value in use, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.
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An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case
the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase in OCIL. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Investments in associates and a joint venture

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize any
additional impairment loss with respect to the Group’s net investment in the investee companies, The
Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investments
in associates or jointly controlled entities are impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as being the difference between the Group’s share in the fair value and the
carrying value of the net assets of the investee company and recognizes the difference in profit or loss,

20.12 Accounts payable and other current liabilities

Accounts payable and other current liabilities are recognized in the period in which the related money,
goods or services are received or when a legally enforceable claim against the Group is established,
These are recognized initially at invoice amount, which approximates fair value, and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method which is normally equal to its nominal
amount.

Accounts payable and other current liabilities are derecognized when the obligation is discharged,
cancelled or expired.

20.13 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The
expense relating to any provision is presented in profit or loss net of any reimbursement. If the effect
of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, the provision shall be reversed or derecognized,

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent
assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable,
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20.14 Revenue recognition
The Parent Company has adopted PFRS 15 effective January 1, 2018,
{a) Management consultaney fees and franchise fees

The Parent Company has entered into an agreement with its related party to provide management,
advisory and consultancy services. Management consultancy fees and franchise fees related to this
agreement are recognized by reference to the monthly completion of the services, Under this method,
revenue is recognized in the accounting periods in which the services are rendered. The related party,
as the customer, simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Parent Company
as the latter performs the service. Therefore, the Parent Company transfers control of service and
recognizes revenue over time, The Parent Company submits invoice on a monthly basis to its
customer. Management fee is charged at 2.5% of annual net revenues of the customer and franchise fee
is charged at 1.0% of net revenues of the customer, The Parent Company determined that there’s no
disaggregation of revenue from this single contract with customer into categories that depict how the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors,

Accounting policies applied until December 31, 2017

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made, Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The Group has concluded that it is the principal
in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements. The
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.

(a} Management consultancy fees and franchise fees

Management consultancy fees and franchise fees are recognized when earned on an acerual basis in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the agreement.

(b) Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest-bearing financial assets classified
as ATS, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR), EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial

instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
liability.

(c) Otherincome

Other income is recognized when earned,

20.15 General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period
in the form of outflows or decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decrease in equity,

other than those relating to distributions to equity participants. General and administrative expenses
are recognized in profit or loss in the period these are incurred.
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20,16 Equity

{a) Share capital

Share capital is measured at par value for all shares issued.

(b) Share premium

Share premium represents capital contribution in excess of par value of the share capital,
(¢} Other reserves

Reserves pertaining to other comprehensive income comprises items of income and expense (including
items previously presented under the consolidated statement of changes in equity) that are not
recognized in the consolidated statement of income for the year in accordance with PFRS. Other
comprehensive income includes remeasurement gains or losses on the Group’s retirement benefits and
the share of the Group on actuarial gain of its associates and joint venture.

(d) Retained earnings

Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of net income or loss of the Group, net of any
dividend declaration,

{e) Treasury shares

Treasury shares are recorded at cost and presented as a deduction from equity. When the shares are
retired, the share capital account is reduced by its par value and the excess of cost over par value upon
retirement is deducted from share premium to the extent of the specific or average share premium
when the shares were issued and from retained earnings for the remaining balance,

20.17 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. Reassessment is made after
the inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

(a) there is a change in the contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

(b) arenewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal and extension
was initially included in the lease term;

(c) there is a change in the determination of whether the fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset;
or

(d) there is a substantial change to the asset,

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date of the change

in circumstances that gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (¢) and (d) above and at the date
of renewal or extension period for scenario (b),
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Group as a lessee

Lease of assets under which the lessor effectively retains all the risks and rewards of ownership is
classified as operating lease. Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized as an income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

20.18 Foreign currency transactions and translation
{a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency™). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is the Parent Company’s functional
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency rate ruling at the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at reporting date. All differences are
taken to the profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical costin a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at
the date when the fair value was determined.

For income tax reporting purposes, foreign exchange gains or losses are treated as taxable income or
deductible expense in the period they are realized.

20.19 Employee benefits
{a) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits include items such as salaries and wages, social security contributions
and nonmonetary benefits, if expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period in which the employees rendered the related services. Short-term employee benefits
are recognized as expense as incurred. When an employee has rendered service to the Group during
the reporting period, the Group recognizes the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any
amount already paid,

(b) Retirement benefits

The Group has a funded, non-contributory retirement plan, administered by a trustee, covering its
regular employees. The net retirement liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if
any), adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling
is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan. Retirement cost is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method. This method reflects service rendered by employees to the date of
valuation and incorporates assumptions concerning employees’ projected salaries.
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Defined retirement benefit costs comprise the following:

{a) Service costs
(b) Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
(¢} Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-routine
settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized when plan
amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by independent gqualified
actuaries.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liahility or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the discount rate based on the risk-free interest rates of government bonds that have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related net defined benefit liability. Net interest on the net defined
benefit Hability or asset is recognized as interest expense or interest income in profit or loss.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses and return on plan assets (excluding net
interest on defined benefit liability} are recognized immediately in OCI under “Actuarial gain on
defined benefit plan” in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not recycled to profit or
loss in subsequent periods.

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund. Plan assets are not available
to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid directly to the Group. Fair value of plan assets is
based on market price information. When no market price is available, the fair value of plan assets is
estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects both the risk
associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal date of those assets (or, if they
have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of the related obligations). If the fair value
of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the defined benefit obligation, the measurement of
the resulting net retirement benefit asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available
in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

20,20 Current and deferred income tax

(a} Currentincome tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that

have been enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date,

Current income tax relating to items directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the
consolidated statement of income,

(b) Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary differences at the reporting

date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.
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Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, with certain
exceptions, Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry
forward benefits of excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) and unused net operating loss
carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable income will allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted as at reporting date,

Deferred income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss. Deferred income tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and the deferred income taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are derecognized when the related bases are realized/settled
or when they are no longer realizable,

(¢} Value-Added Tax (VAT)
Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT except:

= where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax authority,
in which case the tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item as applicable; and

¢ receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax included,

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included as part of other
current assets or payables in the consolidated statement of financial position.

20.21 Related party relationships and transactions

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly, or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationship also exists between and/or among
entities which are under common control with the reporting enterprise, or between and/or among the
reporting enterprise and its key management personnel and partners. In considering each possible
related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not merely the
legal form.
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20,22 Basic/diluted earnings per share (EPS)

EPS is computed by dividing net income for the year attributable to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding during the year, with retroactive
adjustments for any stock dividends declared.

20,23 Operating segments

The Group's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of the
services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different services
and serves different markets, Financial information on business segments is presented in Note 17,
20.24 Events after the reporting period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at reporting date

(adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-end events that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements when material.
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Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries
18th Floor, Units 1802B-1803, The Podium West Tower,
12 ADB Avenue, Ortigas Center
Mandaluyong City

Schedule A
Financial Assets

As at December 31, 2018

Name of issuing entity Number of Amount income
and association of each issue shares or shown in the received and
principal statements of accrued

amount of financial

bonds and position

notes
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Opon Ventures, Inc. 4,800,000 48,000,000 -
Opon-KE Propetties, Inc. 3,128,722 31,287,230 -
Club Filipino Inc. de Cebu 12 225,000 -
Total financial assets at fair value through other 79,512,230 -
comprehensive income

Cash and cash equivalents 138,059,462 4,202,521
Trade and other receivables 4,003,154 -
Due from related parties 99,841,251 -
Refundable deposits 72,300 -
Total financial assets 321,488,397 4,202 521




Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries

18th Floor, Units 1802B-1803, The Podium West Tower,
12 ADB Avenue, Ortigas Center

Mandaluyong City
Schedule B

Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees,
Related Parties and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)
As at December 31, 2018

Amounts
Balance at coltected,
Name and  beginning of liquidated or Amaounts Balance at
designation of debtor year Additions reclassified written off Current Not current  end of year
Keppel Land Limited 230,756 - (230,756} - - - -
Molten Pte Ltd 447 725 148,195 (595,920} - - - -
QOpon-KE Properties,

Inc. 70,218,429 113,918 - - 70,332,347 - 70,332,347
Opon Ventures, inc. 2,081,411 115,239 - - 2,196,650 - 2,196,650
Opon Realty and

Development

Corporation 581,184 140,466 - - 721,650 - 721,650
Buena Homes

(Sandoval), Inc. 25,036,979 700,093 (765,566) - 24 971,506 - 24,971,506
SM Keppel Land, Inc. 1,492,651 21,403,878  {21,519,888) - 1,376,641 - 1,376,641
Wiseland Investment

Myanmar, Ltd. 242 457 - - - 242 457 - 242 457
Employees 164,077 1,632,211 (1,738,085) - 58,203 - 58,203
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Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc, and Subsidiaries
18th Floor, Units 1802B-1803, The Podium West Tower,
12 ADB Avenue, Ortigas Center
Mandaluyong City

Schedule C

Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated
During the Consolidation of Financial Statements
As at December 31, 2018

Name and Balance at Amounts Balance at
designation of beginning Amounts provided Not end of
debtor of year Additions  collected for/written off Current  current year
Buena Homes, Inc. 170,669 113,851 - - 284,620 - 284,520
CSRI Investment
Corporation 207,412 98,939 - - 306,351 - 306,351
Total 378,081 212,790 - - 590,871 - 590,871
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Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Units 2203 and 2204, Raffles Corporate Center,
F. Ortigas Jr. Road (formerly Emerald Avenue),
Ortigas Center, Pasig City

Schedule D
Intangible Assets - Other Assets
As at December 31, 2018

Other
Chargedto  Charged changes
Beginning  Additions cost and to other additions Ending
Description balance at cost expenses accounts (deductions) balance

Not Applicable
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Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Units 2203 and 2204, Raffles Corporate Center,
F, Ortigas Jr, Road (formerly Emerald Avenue),
Ortigas Center, Pasig City

Schedule E
Long Term Debt
As at December 31, 2018

Amount shown under
caption "Current portion

Amount shown under
caption "Long-Term

Titie of issue and type Amount authorized by of long-term debt” in Debt" in related balance
of obligation indenture related balance sheet sheet
Not Applicable




Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc, and Subsidiaries
Units 2203 and 2204, Raffles Corporate Center,
F. Ortigas Jr. Road (formerly Emerald Avenue),
Ortigas Center, Pasig City

Schedule F
Indebtedness to Related Parties
As at December 31, 2018

Balance at beginning

Balance at end

Name of related party of period of period
Opon-KE Propetties, Inc. 40,298,507 40,298 507
Straits Mansfield Property Marketing Pte Ltd 7,403,071 17,690,695
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Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Units 2203 and 2204, Raffles Corporate Center,
F. Ortigas Jr. Road (formerly Emerald Avenue), -
Ortigas Center, Pasig City

Schedule G
Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers
As at December 31, 2018

Name of issuing entity of Title of issue of Total amount Amount owned

securities guaranteed by gach class of guaranteed by person for
the company for which this securities and which statement Nature of
statement is filed guaranteed outstanding is filed guarantee

Not Applicable




Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Units 2203 and 2204, Raffles Corporate Center,
F. Ortigas Jr. Road (formerly Emerald Avenue),
Ortigas Center, Pasig City

Schedule H
Capital Stock
As at December 31, 2018

The details of authorized and paid-up capital stock are as follows:

Number of

Number of shares

shares issued reserved for

and outstanding options,

Number of as shown under warrants, Number of Direclors,
shares retated balance conversion and shares held officers and

Tifte of issue authorized sheet caption other rights by affiliates employees Others
Common Shares of Stock 375,000,000 296,629,900 - - - -
Treasury Stock (2,801,000} - - - -
QOutstanding Commeon Stock 293,828,900 - 255,133,693 10,0068 38,685,201
Preferred Stock 135,700,000 59,474,100 - 59 474,100 - -
Total 353,303,000 - 314,607,793 10,006 38,685,201
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Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc.

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

As at December 31, 2018
{All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, based on audited
financial statements, beginning
Less: Cumulative fair value adjustment
Deferred income tax assets, net - beginning

P

106,363,866

(1,481,979)

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, adjusted
Less : Net loss actually earned/realized during the period
Less: Non-actualfunrealized income net of tax
Share of resuits of associated companies
Unrealized foreign exchange gain (except those attributable to
cash and cash equivalents)
Unrealized actuarial gain
Fair value adjustment
Fair value adjustment of investment property resulting to gain
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP - gain
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)
Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained earnings
as a result of certain transactions accounted for under PFRS

(63,642,378)

538,733

104,881,887

Sub-total

(63,103,645)

41,778,242

Add:  Non actual losses
Depreciation on revaluation in revaluation increment {(after tax)
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP - loss
Loss on fair value adiustment of investment property (after tax)

Net income actually earned during the period

41,778,242

Add (Less):
Dividend declarations during the year
Appropriations of retained earnings during the year
Reversals of appropriations
Effects of prior period adjustments
Treasury shares
Accumulated share in income of an associate

Total retained earnings available

41,778,242
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Keppel Philippines Properties Ine. and Subsidiaries

Financial Ratios
December 31, 2018

Financial ratio Calculation 2018 2017 2016
Ligquidity ratio Current assets over current liabifities 3.25:1 5.10:1 2.32:1
Asset to equity ratio Total assets over total equity 1.06:1 1.04:1 1.08:1
Debt to equity ratio Total liabifities over total equity 0.06:1 0.04:1 0.08:1
Return on assets Net loss after tax over total assets at

beginning {7.26%) (2.18%) (1.71%)
Return on equity Net loss after tax over total equity {8.15%) (2.41%) (1.88%)
L.oss per share Net loss over number of common stock

outstanding (P0.40) (P0.13) (P0.10)
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Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations

effective as at December 31, 2018

The following table summarizes the effective standards and interpretations as at December 31, 2018:

Not Not
Adopted |[Adopted| Applicable
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements .
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative
characteristics v
PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary 4
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting
(Revised) |Standards v
Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an Investment
in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate v
Amendments to PERS 1: Additional Exemptions for First-
time Adopters v
Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters v
Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters v
Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans v
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment v
Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations v
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions v
Amendments to PFRS 2: Measurement of Cash-settled
Share-based Payment Transactions v
PFRS 3 Business Combinations v
(Revised) Amendments to PFRS 3: Definition of a business* v
PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts v
Amendments to PAS 3¢ and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee
Contracts v
Amendments to PFRS 4: Applying PFRS g, Financial
Instruments with PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts v
PERS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations v
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Not Not
Adopted [Adopted|Applicable
PFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources 4
PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7; Reclassification of
Financial Assets v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition v
Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments ‘ v
Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets v
Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities v
Amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7 and PAS 39: Hedge
Accounting v
Amendments to PFRS 9 and PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective
Date and Transition Disclosures v
PFRS 8 Operating Segments v
PFRS 9 Financial Instruments
Amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7 and PAS 30: Hedge
Accounting v
Amendments to PFRS g and PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective
Date and Transition Disclosures v
Amendments to PFRS 9: Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation* v
PFRS 10 |Consolidated Financial Statements v
Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28:
Application of the Consolidation Exception for Investment
Entities v
Amendiments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28; Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture* v
PFRS 11 [Joint Arrangements v
Amendments to PFRS 11; Acquisition of an Interestin a
Joint Operation v
PFRS 12  |Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities v
Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28:
Application of the Consolidation Exception for Investment
Entities v

(2)
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Not Not
Adopted |Adopted|Applicable
PFRS 13 | Fair Value Measurement v
PFRS 14 |Regulatory Deferral Accounts v
PFRS 15 [Revenue from Contracts with Customers v
Amendments to PFRS 15: Clarifications to PFRS 15 v
PFRS 16 |Leases* v
PFRS 17  |Insurance contracts® v
Philippine Accounting Standards
PAS1 Presentation of Financial Statements v
(Revised) Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures v
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liguidation v
Amendments to PAS 1. Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income v
Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure Initiative v
Amendments to PAS 1 and PAS 8: Definition of material* v
PAS 2 Inventories v
PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows v
Amendments to PAS 7: Disclosure Initiative v
PAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors v
Amendments to PAS 1 and PAS 8: Definition of material* v
PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period v
PAS 12 Income Taxes v
Amendment to PAS 16 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets v
Amendments to PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealized Losses v
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment v
Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Aceeptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortization 4
Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41: Bearer Plants v
PAS 17 Leases
PAS 19 Employee Benefits v
(Revised) Amendments to PAS 19: Contributions from Employees or
Third Parties v

(3)
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Not Not
Adopted {Adopted| Applicable
Amendments to PAS 19; Plan Settlement, Curtailment or
Settlement* v
PAS z0 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance v
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates v
Amendment to PAS 21: Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation v
PAS 23
(Revised) [Borrowing Costs v
JPAS 24
(Revised)} |Related Party Disclosures v
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans v
PAS 27 Separate Financial Statements v
(Revised) Amendments to PAS 27: Use of Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements v
PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures v
(Revised) Amendments of PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28;
Application of the Consolidation Exception for Investment
Entities v
Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28; Sale or
Contributions of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture 4
Amendment to PAS 28: Measuring an associate or joint
venture at fair value v
Amendments to PAS 28: Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures* v
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies v
PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation v
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liguidation v
Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues v
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities v
PAS 33 Earnings per Share v
PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting v
PAS 36 Impairment of Assets v
Amendment to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount Disclosures v

(4)
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Not Not
Adopted |Adopted|Applicable

PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets v
PAS 38 Intangible Assets v

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Acceptable Methods

of Depreciation and Amortization v
PAS g0 Investment Property v

Amendment to PAS 40: Transfers of Investment Property v
PAS 41 Agriculture v

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41: Bearer Plants v
Philippine Interpretations
IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and

Similar Liabilities Y
IFRIC 2 |Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar

Instruments v
IFRIC 4 |Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease v
IFRIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,

Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds v
IFRIC 6 |Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market -

Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment v
IFRIC7? |Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies v
IFRIC 10 |Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment v
IFRIC 12 |Service Concession Arrangements v
IFRIC 14 |The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction v

Amendments to IFRIC 14: Prepayments of a Minimum

Funding Requirement v
IFRIC 16 |Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation v
IFRIC 17 | Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners v
IFRIC 18 |Transfers of Assets from Customers v
IFRIC 19 |Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity

Instruments v
IFRIC 20 |Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine v
IFRIC 21 |Levies v
IFRIC 22 |Foreign Carrency Transactions and Advance

Congideration v
IFRIC 23 |Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments* v

(5)
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Not Not
Adopted [Adopted|Applicable

SI1C-7 Introduction of the Euro v
SI1C-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to

Operating Activities v
SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives v
SIC-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or

its Shareholders v
SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the

Legal Form of a Lease v
SIC-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures v
SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v

The standards, amendments and interpretations marked with an asterisk (*) have been issued but are not
yet effective for December 31, 2018 financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, these standards,
amendments and interpretations have not been early adopted.

The standards, amendments and interpretations that are labeled as “Not Applicable” are already effective
as at December 31, 2018 but will never be relevant/applicable to the Group or are currently not relevant to
the Group because it has currently no related transactions.
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KEPPEL PHILIPPINES PROPERTIES, INC.
INDEX TO EXHIBITS
SEC FORM 17-A

No, Page No.
(N Publication of Notice re: Filing NA
(2) Underwriting Agreement NA
3) Plan of Acquisition, Reorganization, Arrangement, Liquidation or NA
Succession
4 Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws NA
(5) Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holders, Including NA
Indentures
{6) Opinion Re: Legality NA
(7 Opinion Re: Agreement NA
(&) Voting Trust Agreement NA
{9) Material Contracts NA
(10) Annual Report to Security Holders, Form 11- Q or Quarterly Report to NA
Security Holders
(D Material Foreign Patents NA
(12) Letter Re: Unaudited Interim Financial Information NA
(13) Letter Re: Change in Certifying Accountant NA
(14 Letter Re: Director Resignation NA
(15) Letter Re: Change in Accounting Principles NA
(16) Report Furnished to Security Holders NA
{17 Other Documents Or Statements to Security Holders NA
(18) Subsidiaries of the Registrant 104
(19 Published Report Regarding Maitters Submitted to Vote of Security NA
Holders
20 Consents of Experts and Independent Counsel NA
2h Power of Attorney NA
(22) Statements of Eligibility of Trustee NA
(23) Exhibits to be Filed with Bonds Issues NA
24) Exhibits to be Filed with Stocks Options Issues NA
(25) Exhibits to be Filed by Investment Companies NA
(26) Curriculum Vitae and Photographs of Officers and Members of the Board NA
of Directors
(27) Copy of Board of Investment Certificate in the case of Board of NA
Investment Registered Companies
{28) Authorization to Commission to Access Registrant’s Bank Accounts NA
{29) Additional Exhibits NA
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EXHIBIT 18 SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Name Country of Business Percentage of
Incorporation Ownership
CSRI Investment Corporation Philippines Investment in securities and 100%
condominium units
Buena Homes Inc. Philippines Property holding and 100%

development
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KEPPEL PHILIPPINES PROPERTIES, INC.
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

KEPPEL PHILIPPINES

PROPERTIES, INC.
(KPP}

y

BUENA HOMES INC.
(BHY)

CSRI INVESTMENT
CORP. (CSRI)

4

BUENA HOMES
(SANDOVAL) INC.

h 4

OPON REALTY & DEVT
CORP.
(ORDC)

l

OPON VENTURES, INC.
(V)

|

(BHSI)

Subsidiaries
Buena Homes, Inc. {BHI)
CSRI Investment Corporation {(CSRI)

Percentage of Ownership

OPON-KE PROPERTIES,
INC.
(OKEP)

A

Yy

SM KEPPEL LAND, INC. |
(SMKL)

100%
100%

Percentage of Ownership

Associates

Buena Homes (Sandoval), Inc. (BHS!) 40%

Opoen Realty and Devetopment Corp. (ORDC) 40%

Opon-KE Propetties, Inc, (OKEP) 40%

SM-Keppel Land, Inc. {SMKL) 40%
40%

Opon Ventures, Inc.(OWh)

Nature of Business
investment holding
nvestment holding

Nature of Business

Property holding and development
Property holding and development
Property holding and development
Property holding and development
Property holding and development
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